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2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

Acronym Definition

AFS Annual Financial Statements

AG Auditor-General

AGSA Auditor-General of South Africa

ANC African National Congress

APP Annual Performance Plan

B2B Back to Basics

BCEA Basic Conditions of Employment Act No.75 of 1997
BAS Basic Accounting System

CAPEX Capital Expenditure

CARC Cluster Audit and Risk Committee

CBD Central Business District

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CMET Comprehensive Monitoring and Evaluation Tool
CoC Code of Conduct

COGTA/Cogta Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
COHOD Committee Of Heads Of Departments

CSC Community Service Centres

CWP Community Works Programme

CSD Central Supplier Database

DDA District Development Agency

DDG Deputy Director General

DORA Division of Revenue Act

DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration
DTI Department of Trade and Industry

EPWP Expanded Public Works Programme

ECM Enterprise Content Management

EHW Employee Health and Wellness

GIS Geographic Information System

GREC Governance, Risk and Ethics Committee

GRAP Generally Recognized Accounting Practice

OHOD Office of the Head of Department

HCT HIV Counselling and Testing

HDI Historically Disadvantaged Individuals

HIV/AIDS Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome
HOA Home Owners Allowance

HOD Head of Department

ICT Information Communication Technology

IT Information Technology

IDP Integrated Development Plan

IGR Intergovernmental Relations

I'YM In Year Monitoring

KZN KwaZulu-Natal

KZN COGTA KwaZulu-Natal Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
KZNTLGA KwaZulu-Natal Traditional Governance and Leadership Act No.5 of 2005
LED Local Economic Development
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Acronym Definition

MEC Member of the Executive Council

MFMA Municipal Finance Management Act

MIG Municipal Infrastructure Grant

MISA Municipal Infrastructure Support Agent

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MPAC Municipal Public Accounts Committee

MPRA Municipal Property Rates Act

MPSA Minister for the Public Service and Administration
MSA Municipal Systems Act

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

MTSF Medium Term Strategic Framework

MuniMEC Municipalities and Members of the Executive Council
NACH National Anti-Corruption Hotline

NDP National Development Plan

NEC National Executive Committee

NQF National Qualifications Framework

OHS Occupational Health and Safety

OTP Office of the Premier

0SS Operation Sukuma Sakhe

PAJA Promotion of Administrative Justice Act

PAIA Promotion of Access to Information Act

PIAS Provincial Internal Audit Services

PDMC Provincial Disaster Management Centre
PERSAL Personal Salary System

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PGDP Provincial Growth and Development Plan

PSA Public Service Act

PSCBC Public Service Co-ordinating Bargaining Council
RASET Radical Agrarian Socio-Economic Transformation
SALGA South African Local Government Association
SAWS South African Weather Services

SCM Supply Chain Management

SCOPA Standing Committee on Public Accounts

SDIP Service Delivery Improvement Plan

SDBIP Service Delivery Budget Improvement Plan

SDF Spatial Development Framework

SHERQ Safety, Health, Environment, Risk and Quality
SITA State Information Technology Agency

SMME Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise

SMS Senior Management Services

SMT Systems Monitoring Tool

SOP Standard Operating Procedures

SPLUMA Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act
B Tuberculosis

TC Traditional Council

TRADMUNIMEC Forum of Traditional Leadership, Municipalities and Members of the Executive Council
TSMP Traditional Settlement Master Plans
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3. FOREWORD BY THE MEC

It is a pleasure for me to present the Annual Report for the 2019/2020 financial year for the
Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs. This report sets the tone for
the sixth administration which was ushered in by the 2019 provincial elections. Building on the
solid foundation of accelerated service delivery laid during the fifth administration, this report
covers our renewed effort to empower KZN's 54 municipalities and ensure that they are managed
effectively and efficiently.

At the outset, | wish to report that the department has earned a clean audit for the 2019/2020
financial year. This is a significant milestone in our overall performance. Being able to manage
our own resources as a department is the best prerequisite for being able to transform the
entire sphere of local government in our province to be one that excels in general financial
management. | attribute this remarkable outcome to the hard work of my team of officials.

In the year under review, the department continued on its path of innovation where novel
developments, such as the continuous assessment of the state of local government in the
province and the deployment of local government specialists to its municipalities, helped to
create - and maintain - local government institutions that are able to govern and manage
themselves to become beacons of socio-economic development and growth in KZN.

As a department, we can now say with confidence that we have grown from an institution that merely supports municipalities in the
implementation of their constitutional mandate towards one that is proactive in the delivery and maintenance of municipal infrastructure.
This transition has enabled municipalities to deliver essential services at levels that are very close to universal coverage in our
communities' access to water, electricity and sanitation. One challenge in this regard has been poor revenue collection in several
municipalities. In some municipalities, these issues caused non-payment of arrears due to the country's power utility - Eskom. These
developments impacted negatively on the financial viability of municipalities but we at Cogta have intervened to apply pressure on
all those who can afford it to pay for their municipal services and we have also assisted municipalities in negotiating payment plans
with Eskom.

Our assessment of the latest audit outcomes of municipalities has highlighted a critical issue of consequence management and even
as we undertook our support and monitoring role in providing the necessary frameworks and training for municipal officials and
councillors, the levels of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure have yet to improve in many municipalities. Arresting
these developments remains a number one priority for us going forward.

Capacity building, training, skills development, hands-on approach and technical support are all essential ingredients of success in
the sphere of local government and our role in facilitating all of these is already helping our municipalities perform better in discharging
their responsibilities and mandates. During the year under review, we have almost concluded skills audits of municipal officials in the
province and those few that are left will be finalised in the 2020/2021 financial year.

Towards the very end of the 2019/2020 financial year, our province was negatively impacted by the outbreak of the global Covid-19
pandemic. Although the pandemic only reached KZN in March 2020 and did not thus materially affect our performance goals for the
year under review, it caused a major paradigm shift in our priorities and expenditure patterns in 2020/2021. As | write, the department
continues to work hard to fight the spread of the novel coronavirus in our communities.

Despite our many challenges that have most recently included the Covid-19 pandemic, KZN remains a diverse and dynamic province
full of opportunities. It falls to us as a government department that exercises general oversight over the province's 54 municipalities
to rise to our challenges and exploit our opportunities. Our key approach to this is to provide the kind of targeted support our
municipalities require so that municipalities themselves become problem solvers.

As | conclude, | wish to acknowledge the contribution of all our hardworking employees and various stakeholders to our achievements
as we march towards the new era of growth in the sixth administration. Without their dedication and commitment this report would
not be the story of evolving success that it is. | now have the pleasure of presenting this 2019/2020 Annual Report of KZN Cogta to
the Provincial Legislature and all our stakeholders.

Approved by:

Mr. S. Hlomuka - MPL
MEC for Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs

PAGE 8
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4. DEPUTY MINISTER STATEMENT (if applicable)

This is not applicable for KZNCOGTA.

5. REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

As the Accounting Officer, it is with great pleasure and a sense of accomplishment that we
submit the 2019/20 Annual Report of the KZN Department of Cooperative Governance and
Traditional Affairs (hereafter referred to as the “Department”) to the Provincial Legislature,
Provincial Treasury, the media and the general public. The overview of this Annual Report
provides a synopsis of the key deliverables of the Department in the year under review. The
report indicates that during the reporting period, the Department achieved 95% (188 of 197)
planned annual targets set in the 2019/20 Annual Performance Plan and spent 99% of its
allocated budget. This achievement echoes the Department's commitment to service delivery
and good governance.

The Department remains committed to improved audit outcomes. Specific measures were put
in place to ensure the effective implementation of the audit improvement plan. The Clean Audit
Committee, which consists of senior officials within the Department, continued to discharge its
responsibilities to monitor the implementation of the audit improvement plan and to ensure
that appropriate steps are taken to ensure clean governance.

The Committee acted as an early warning system in identifying gaps within the departmental
systems and processes in order to address them swiftly. As we move closer to the end of the
local government electoral term, we remain committed to discharging our constitutional mandate
to support, monitor and build the capacity of municipalities in the Province. In discharging our
mandates, the Department also remains committed to economic transformation and job creation. As a result, the Department placed
about five hundred and seventeen (517) interns across all fifty-four (54) municipalities in the Province in order to build the capacity
of municipalities. We have also maintained forty-five thousand (45000) work opportunities created through the Community Work
Programme funded with R586-million by the National Department of Cooperative Governance.

Many municipalities continue to experience challenges with the regression in audit outcomes and governance matters. During the
2019/20 financial year, the Department undertook an extensive assessment of the state of local government. The purpose was to
identify key performance areas of focus in the upcoming financial year, to improve governance, ensure sound financial management
and service delivery in municipalities. The Department further implemented measures to support municipalities. As a result, municipalities
with unfunded budgets reduced by 50%. It is pleasing to report that currently forty-six (46) out of fifty-four (54) municipalities now have
funded budgets compared to thirty-seven (37) out of fifty-four (54) municipalities at the beginning of 2019 where seventeen (17) out
of fifty-four (54) municipalities had unfunded budgets. However, the Department supported the eight municipalities with unfunded
budgets to have financial recovery plans in place and approved by National Treasury.

The Department has also continued to provide support to municipalities under constitutional intervention. During the 2019/2020 financial
year, eight interventions remained active, namely at Msunduzi, Umzinyathi District, Richmond, Mtubatuba, Inkosi Langalibalele,
Abaqulusi, Uthukela and Mpofana municipalities. Financial experts were appointed in an effort to improve audit outcomes in five
municipalities under intervention, with the exception of Msunduzi and Mpofana which have had such experts for some time. The
intervention at Endumeni Local municipality was terminated during the financial year due to achievements in the implementation of
the recovery plan.

As the custodian of the Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) Framework Act No. 13 of 2005, our oversight function continues to be key
in fostering cooperation amongst the provincial and local government spheres of government for purposes of improving service
delivery. We did this through a number of IGR fora including the MEC and Mayors (MuniMec) Fora where municipalities have a
platform to participate robustly on issues affecting local government. The Department has also re-engineered the District Mayors and
District Municipal Managers Forums to become the district political and technical hubs to drive the implementation of the District
Development Model as pronounced by the President of the Republic. The Terms of Reference will eventually see the streamlining
of coordination among all three spheres of government operating in the local government space in a coordinated manner to plan,
budget and deliver effective services to the communities

Accelerated sustainable development can be achieved through effective integrated planning, local economic development and
implementation of schemes and provision of basic services. Infrastructure development, economic growth and informed planning are
central to the sustainable growth and service delivery. About 98% of KZN municipalities have updated their Spatial Development
Plans to ensure that they are compliant with SPLUMA.

——l —
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In addition, in response to the infrastructure maintenance backlogs faced by the province, in the financial year, the Department provided
yellow plant equipment to the value of R117,03 million, including graders, water tankers, rollers, excavators, waste trucks, honey
suckers and TLBs, to municipalities on the basis of need. Such items have been handed over to Ugu, uMgungundlovu, uThukela,
uMzinyathi, Amajuba, Zululand, King Cetshwayo, iLembe, uMkhanyakude and Harry Gwala districts. Through this initiative, the
Department recorded speedy delivery of water to communities with water challenges, especially in Ugu, uThukela and Amajuba.

KZN COGTA has also commenced an assessment of the state of existing water, sanitation and electricity infrastructure in the Province.
The KwaZulu-Natal Province will be the first Province to complete such a massive state of infrastructure assessment in South Africa,
which is projected for completion in the 2020/21 financial year. The assessment will result in a database of assets, their condition,
their geo spatial location and refurbishment work required with cost estimate. This will substantially enhance the municipal asset
registers and will place the Department in a position to influence National Fiscal Policy in respect of Operations and Maintenance
Funding Models. COGTA will invest R115 million in this infrastructure assessment. The estimated total refurbishment cost is R9, 5
billion. The assessment cost will merely be 1.2% of the refurbishment cost in Operations and Maintenance. A comprehensive Provincial
Water Master Plan is on track to be completed by the end of October 2020. The Provincial Water Master Plan will be a product of a
coordinated effort of all water service stakeholders in the Province, including the Provincial Planning Commission as well as national
counterparts.

Good governance remains critical in the institutions of Traditional Leadership in order to provide effective support to the communities.
The Department continued to support cultural platforms to enable the traditional communities the opportunity to share their cultures,
customs and updated their family trees. The Department assessed 287 Traditional Councils in the Province in order identify areas
requiring intensive support. The assessment focused on the execution of roles and functions, administrative capacity, state of physical
resources and intergovernmental relations. It highlighted critical needs in infrastructure, tools of trade and capacity building. In 2020/21,
we will be implementing the support plans developed for each Traditional Council to provide interventions towards self-sustainability
and competency. This will automatically prepare the institution of traditional leadership for effective and meaningful participation in
future District Development Model activities. The Department will develop the guidelines on the participation of traditional leadership
in the District Development Model.

To date, we have also managed to update 268 family trees of Imindeni yobukhosi. The Department will continue to engage Amakhosi
extensively in order to update the twelve outstanding family trees with the participation of imiNdeni. This process is also critical in
addressing some of the prevalent succession disputes. Currently, there are seven outstanding prolonged succession disputes that
the Department is working on and has escalated to the Honourable Premier for intervention and speedy resolution.

The Department has also continued to attend to the outstanding issues raised by the Traditional Councils and Amakhosi, such as
the payment of sitting allowances for 1690 Traditional Council members amounting to R1.245-million. We also paid all izinduna their
outstanding increment and will be meeting with the national government and other stakeholders to discuss the issue of back-pay in
order to agree on a workable way forward.

The world experienced the global outbreak of the novel coronavirus around the end of the financial year. Despite the impact of the
Pandemic, the Department has been at the forefront in driving initiatives to limit the spread of the virus and the devastating consequences
to our municipalities and traditional institutions and the communities they serve. The Department undertook all legally permissible
means to ensure business continuity during this tough period.

The Department remains committed to ensuring the fulfilment of its constitutional and legislative mandates. The municipalities and
the institutions of traditional leadership are central within these mandates. | wish to thank the Executive Authority for the trust placed
on me as Accounting Officer of this Department. In addition, the management and staff of the Department remains the driving force
behind the achievements in the 2019/20 financial year. We also appreciate the support and guidance from the KwaZulu-Natal
Legislature Oversight Committees, including the Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs Portfolio Committee and the Standing
Committee on Public Accounts, as well as KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Treasury and its Committees as our partner.

Approval and sign off

MR T TUBANE

HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

DEPARTMENT OF COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS
VOTE 11
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6. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION
OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the following:

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash standard and the relevant
frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements made in this
information.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control that has been designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the
annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information and the

financial affairs of the department for the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

Yours faithfully

Mr Thando Tubane
Head of Department
Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
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7. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

7.1 Vision
COGTA envisages “People Centred Sustainable Cooperative Governance”.

7.2 Mission
“KZN COGTA will coordinate and foster cooperation amongst governance institutions and build capacity to accelerate delivery of high

quality services to communities”.

7.3 Values

VALUE DEFINITION

Transparency, integrity, professionalism and objectivity | Allowing service beneficiaries and staff to ask questions and responding

to their enquiries honestly, frankly and timeously.

A high standard of fiscal discipline and accountability All expenditure be accounted for and be aligned to departmental objectives.

Value for money Adding value to the lives of service beneficiaries.

Open communication and consultation Listening to, taking account of the views and paying heed to the needs

of service beneficiaries, when deciding what services should be provided.

Respect for staff and investment in them Treating staff with consideration and respect and assigning development
as a valued asset programmes in line with the Department's objectives and providing a

wellness programme.

Recognition of performance excellence Rewarding and recognising staff for good performance.

Service excellence through teamwork, sound planning Support programmes developed by the Department are designed and

and committed implementation monitored to impact on service beneficiaries.
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8. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES
CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATE

The mandates of the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs are embodied in the following Sections of the
Constitution, 1996:

. Section 139 provides for provincial intervention in local government. This intervention in municipalities, includes the issuing
of directives, and managing interventions by the Provincial Executive Council in accordance with the provisions of section
139(1) (a), (b) and (c);

. Section 154 determines that provincial governments must provide support and strengthen the capacity of municipalities to
manage their own affairs, to exercise their powers and to perform their functions in accordance with the provisions of section
154(1) and (2);

. Section 155(5) and (6) determines the types of municipalities in KwaZulu-Natal, and establishes municipalities in KwaZulu-
Natal, thereafter the Municipalities, by legislative and other measures, must be monitored and supported, in addition to which
the Department must promote the development of local government capacity, to enable municipalities to perform their
functions and manage their own affairs; and

. Section 155 (7) stipulates that provincial governments have legislative and executive authority to see to the effective
performance by municipalities of their functions in respect of matters listed in Schedules 4 and 5, by regulating the exercise
by municipalities of their executive authority referred to in section 156(1).

. Chapter 12 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 recognises the institution of traditional leadership and
emphasises the significant role it plays in preserving the customs of traditional communities. It further defines the institution
as an organ of state which justifies its place in the democratic dispensation especially in relation to governance issues.

LEGISLATIVE MANDATES

The following legislation is administered by the Department:
 Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000)
» Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998)
» Local Government: Municipal Financial Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 53 of 2003)
* Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act No. 6 of 2004)
» Local Government Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 6 of 2004)
» Local Government Municipal Electoral Act, 2000 (Act No. 27 of 2000)
+ Traditional Leadership and Governance Framework Act, 2003 (Act No. 41 of 2003)
» The National House of Traditional Leaders Act 2009 (Act No. 22 of 2009)
» The KwaZulu-Natal Traditional Leadership and Governance Act 2005 (Act Np. 5 of 2005)
* The White Paper on Traditional Leadership
« Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No. 57 of 2002)
 Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act, 2013: (Act No. 16 of 2013)
* Infrastructure Development Act, 2014 (Act No. 23 of 2014)
» Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions Act, 2007 (Act No. 12 of 2007)
» Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act, 1998 (Act No. 20 of 1998)
» KwaZulu-Natal Planning and Development Act, 2008 (Act No. 6 of 2008)
» KwaZulu-Natal Pounds Act, 2006 (Act No. 3 of 2006)
» KwaZulu-Natal Cemeteries and Crematoria Act, 1996 (Act No. 32 of 2000)
» KwaZulu-Natal Determination of Types of Municipalities Act, 2000 (Act No. 7 of 2000)
» KwaZulu-Natal Traditional Leadership and Governance Act, 2005 (Act No. 5 of 2005)
* Fire Brigade Services Act, 1987 (Act No. 99 of 1987)




COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS « ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

POLICY MANDATES

Policy mandates have in the past created the parameters within which laws have been developed. For example, the White Paper
on Developmental Local Government created the policy environment for the development of the Municipal Structures, Systems,
Financial Management and Intergovernmental Relations Acts. Policy mandates are also associated with policy pronouncements such
as: The National Development Plan (NDP), Medium Term Strategic Framework (MTSF) and the Provincial Growth and Development
Plan (PGDP) which then enhance the mandate for Cooperative Governance.

Freedom Charter, 1961

The Freedom Charter is a document that the Congress of the People adopted in 1961 as to what would be a picture of a free South
Africa. The Freedom Charter declares that "South Africa belongs to all who live in it, black and white, and no government can justly
claim authority unless it is based on the will of all the people" (Freedom Charter, 1961: 1). The will of all people is at the centre, and
forms a base for this document. The core principles of the Freedom Charter find manifestation in the SA Constitution. The key opening
demand for the Freedom Charter is “The people shall govern”. This means that all men and women off all races, sex and colour have
a right to vote, and can stand as a candidate for all bodies which make law and are entitled to be part of the administration of the
country. Indeed, as Cogta we have witnessed that our government is elected regularly through transparent, free and fair elections
as a prerequisite of our democracy demanded by the Freedom Charter. Every South African has the right to elect a government of
his or her own choice. Regardless of race, the charter also calls for full equal rights for all citizens including human rights; common
ownership of land and industry; equality before law; right to housing, security and comfort; jobs and security; fully-funded education
for children and greater access to higher education.

The Freedom Charter remains the platform and vision for South African policies, strategic thinking and aspirations that South Africa
seeks to achieve. On the Statement of the National Executive Committee (NEC) of the African National Congress, President Jacob
Zuma defines National Development Plan (NDP) as an “overarching plan and a vision to realise the ideals of the Freedom Charter
to put in place a South Africa that belongs to all who live in it” (Statement of the NEC of the ANC, 2015: 3). This means that the NDP
is our long term vision to attain the objectives of the Freedom Charter.

26 June 2015 marks the 60th anniversary of the adoption of the Freedom Charter. While there has been huge progress, there is still
a lot to be done for our people in giving effect to the ideals envisaged by the Freedom Charter. Our role as Cogta is to co-ordinate,
lead Integrated Provincial Service Delivery; support ward based planning; and strengthen Local Government to ensure that it has
the necessary capacity to decently house people whilst providing other necessary services such as transport, roads, lighting, playing
fields, créches and social centres called for by the Freedom Charter. The Department will also work towards improving consultation,
communication and feedback in municipalities and traditional councils.
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National Development Plan and Medium Term Strategic Framework

The National Development Plan is a plan for South Africa and provides a broad strategic framework to guide key choices and actions
in order to eliminate poverty, reduce inequality and unemployment by 2030. The NDP approach draws extensively on the notion of
capabilities, active citizenry and inclusive economy, enhancing the capacity of the state, and promoting leadership and partnerships
throughout society. As with the Freedom Charter, NDP calls on our people to be part of an active citizenry and to take greater collective
responsibility for their own development.

COGTA contributes to the delivery of chapters 4, 5, 6, 8, 13, 14 and 15 of the NDP. Table 8.2 illustrates the alignment of the COGTA
strategic goals and objectives with the NDP, MTSF outcomes and PGDP.

The MEC Delivery Agreement for the 2019/20 Financial Year has been integrated into the Annual Performance Plan and contributes
towards the following Outcomes:

. Outcome 6: Economic Infrastructure

. Outcome 7: Vibrant, Equitable and Sustainable Rural Communities and Food Security for All

. Outcome 9: A Responsive, Accountable, Effective and Efficient Local Government System

. Outcome 10: Environmental Assets and Natural Resources that are well protected continually enhanced
. Outcome 14: Nation Building and Social Cohesion

The MTSF is the short term strategy that gives effect to the NDP. The NDP and MTSF identify the following priorities that are particularly
important to improve Local Government performance and ensure quality service delivery:

a) Members of society have sustainable and reliable access to basic services. (Outcome 9: Sub Outcome 1).

b) Intergovernmental and democratic governance arrangements for a functional system of cooperative governance strengthened
(Outcome 9: Sub Outcome 2).

¢) Sound financial and administrative management. (Outcome 9: Sub Outcome 3).

d) Promotion of social and economic development. (Outcome 9: Sub Outcome 4)

e) Local public employment programmes expanded through the Community Work Programme. (Outcome 9: Sub Outcome 5).

Provincial Growth and Development Plan (PGDP)

The KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Growth and Development Plan (PGDP) is a comprehensive document that addresses the enormous
triple challenge of poverty, inequality and unemployment. This is a long-term plan, which sets ambitious but achievable targets that
will be realised by the year 2035. The PGDP espouses the Provincial vision that KwaZulu-Natal will be a prosperous Province with
a healthy, secure and skilled population, acting as a gateway to Africa and the World. The PGDP is aligned to the National Development
Plan. The Department's operations are guided by the National Development Plan, 2030 which is expressed in the Provincial Growth
and Development Plan as outlined in the strategic goals and objectives below.

STRATEGIC GOALS OBJECTIVES

Inclusive Economic Growth * Develop and promote the agricultural potential of KZN

» Enhance sectoral development through trade investment and business retention

» Enhance spatial economic development

* Improve the efficiency, innovation and variety of government-led job creation programmes
» Promote SMME and entrepreneurial development

» Enhance the Knowledge Economy

Human Resource Development * Improve Early Childhood Development, Primary and Secondary Education
» Support Skills alignment to Economic Growth
» Enhance youth and adult skills development and life-long learning

Human And Community Development » Eradicate poverty and improve social welfare services

» Enhancing Health of Communities and Citizens

 Safeguard Sustainable Livelihoods & Food Security

» Promote Sustainable Human Settlements

» Enhancing Safety & Security

» Advance Social Cohesion and social capital

» Promote Youth, Gender and Disability Advocacy & the Advancement of Women
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STRATEGIC GOALS OBJECTIVES

Infrastructure Development » Development of Ports and Harbours Seaports and Airports

» Development of Road & Rail Networks

» Development of ICT Infrastructure

* Ensure availability and sustainable management of water and

* sanitation for all

» Ensure access to affordable, reliable, sustainable and modern energy for all
» Enhance KZN waste management capacity

Environmental Sustainability » Enhance resilience of ecosystem services
» Expand the application of green technologies
» Adapt and respond to climate change

Governance and Policy « Strengthen Policy, Strategy Co-ordination and IGR

* Building Government Capacity

» Eradicate Fraud & Corruption

» Promote Participative, Facilitative & Accountable Governance

Spatial Equity » Enhance the resilience of new and existing cities, towns and rural

* nodes, ensuring equitable access to resources, social and economic opportunities

« Ensure integrated land management use across the Province, ensuring equitable access to goods
and services, attracting social and financial investment

ANC 2016 Local Government Manifesto

In line with the NDP, the African National Congress (ANC) manifesto aims to move South Africa forward in addressing the challenges
of poverty, unemployment and inequality. Together with communities, the ANC commits to:

. Build on achievements made in delivering basic services to the people

. Improve access to municipal services and reduce outsourcing in municipalities

. Further improve public participation and accountability of councillors

. Enhance the capacity of the local state to deliver on its mandate.

. Develop and strengthen local economies, create jobs and promote job placements, especially for the youth
. Intensify the fight against fraud and corruption in local government and social fabric crimes in communities
. Promote education as the apex priority in local communities.

. Improve health in urban and rural communities

. Help municipalities adapt to the changing climatic conditions.

. Build spatially integrated communities

. Promote nation-building and socially cohesive communities.

Medium Term Strategic Framework (MTSF 2019-2024)

The 2019-24 MTSF represent priorities derived from the Manifesto of the ruling party. The preconditions for successful implementation
of the electoral mandate is highly anchored around correcting key dysfunctionalities, inhibitors to growth and ensure implementation
of critical enablers in the following areas:

. Energy Supply risk from ESKOM and high cost of electricity
. Supply of water and high cost of Water

. Access to Rail particularly branch line network

. Access to good road infrastructure

. Good Governance at State Owned and Public Entities

. Implement Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

. Establish Economic Regulators in Water &Transport Sectors

It is with the above logic that COGTA identified IGR as a game changer for successful execution of the electoral mandate in the new
administration.

The MTSF identifies key areas, priorities, or goals for implementation by the 6th Administration. The goals are as follows:

Economy and Jobs

Education, Skills and Health

Social Wage

Spatial Development & Human Settlements, Local Government
Social Cohesion and Safe Communities

Capable, Developmental &Honest Government

Africa & The World

Noakwh=

The Department has prioritised, local government as key to its initiatives in the year 2019/2020. In his speech of the State of the
Province, The Premier, Honourable Mr Sihle Zikalala indicated the need to make Local Government work better.

——ll N — .



COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS « ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Back to Basics

The Back to Basics programme was launched with the theme of “Serving Our Communities Better”. The Presidential Summit was
held on the 18 September 2014, in which the President, outlined governments plan of action for the next 5 years which is to ensure
a focused and strengthened local government by getting the basics right and together with other spheres of government, providing
basic services efficiently and effectively and in a caring manner.

The 5 pillars of the programme have been outlined as:

. Putting People First: Listening and communicate

. Adequate and community orientated service provision
. Good governance and transparent administration

. Sound financial management and accounting

. Robust institutions with skilled and capable staff

Changing strategic orientation will not be easy and it will require bold leadership and political will. At the same time a collective effort
and unity of purpose and partnership with leaders in local government, Provinces and national government is required. There is a
need to improve the political management of municipalities and be responsive to the needs and aspirations of local communities.
The Back to Basics transformational agenda recognises that there are widely divergent levels of performance between different
categories of municipalities - in terms of services, public engagement, good governance, financial management and technical capacity.
The aim is to encourage all municipalities to become positively functional centres of good governance. There was also a need to set
the proper standards for municipal performance.

* Priority 1: For those municipalities in a dysfunctional state the aim was to provide support to them to perform at the very least the
basic functions of local government. This should have been done through the monitoring of applicable policies and legislation and
monitoring of performance to ensure accountability.

* Priority 2: For those municipalities who are functional but are not doing enough in critical areas of service delivery, they should
have been supported to progress to a higher path. Here the focus will be providing support to build strong municipal administrative
systems and processes as well as to oversee the filling of administrative positions. Measures were taken to support municipalities
to engage with their communities.

* Priority 3: Municipalities that are performing well were supported to maintain their status as well as encouraged to move beyond
the basics and transform the local space economy and integrate and densify communities to improve sustainability.

* Priority 4: Municipalities were monitored in respect of their response to fraud and corruption in order to ensure that these practices
are rooted out.
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9. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY: CO-OPERATIVE
GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS

DIRECTORATE: INTERNAL CONTROL

DEPARTMENT OF CO-OPERATIVE Director: Internal Control - Ms T Dinga
GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS

DIRECTORATE: LEGAL SERVICES

Director: Legal Services - Mr S Zondi
Head of Department
Mr T Tubane

CHIEF
CHIEF DIRECTORATE: CHIEF
BRANCH: LOCAL BRANCH: BRANCH: OFFICE OF THE DIRECTORATE: | HUMAN RESOURCE] DIRECTORATE:
GOVERNMENT DEVELOPMENT TRADITIONAL CHIEF FINANCIAL MONITORING & MANAGEMENT CORPORATE
Programme 2 AND PLANNING AFFAIRS OFFICER EVALUATION AND SERVICES
Programme 3 Programme 4 Programme 1 DEVELOPMENT Programme 1
Programme 1
Deputy Director- Deputy Director- Deputy Director-General ~ Chief Financial Officer Chief Director Chief Director Chief Director
General: Acting General: Ms B Mgutshini Mr Gumede Mr B Ndlovu Ms A Sekhesa Mr GN Dlamini Mr SP Khanyi
Mr T. Mdadane Vacant: 1 March 2020)
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10. ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MEC

There are no entities reporting to the MEC as indicated in the table below:

Name of Entity Legislative Mandate Financial Relationship Nature of Operations
Nil Nil Nil Nil
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PART B

PERFORMANGE INFORMATION
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1. AUDITOR GENERAL'S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs certain audit procedures on the performance information to provide reasonable assurance in the form
of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report to
management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements section of the auditor's report.

Refer to page 212 of the Report of the Auditor General, published as Part E: Financial Information.

2. OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE

2.1 Service Delivery Environment

During 2019/20, a number of factors influenced the service delivery environment. Some of these factors includes President Cyril
Ramaphosa's call, echoed by KZN Premier Sihle Zikalala, to grow South Africa, the Khawuleza Campaign to expedite service delivery
and the National Development Plan (NDP). It is a strategic response to the people's manifesto as endorsed by the citizens. The Back
to Basics programme, which intends to transform the province's local government sector, also dictates much of our work.

The Department had to reprioritise and adjust the budget to respond to the key policy priorities of the sixth administration as pronounced
during the State of the Province Address. These included the water challenges facing the province and the stabilisation of local
government institutions. There was a need to make trade-offs inspired by the need to respond to the pressing needs of our communities.
Five pillars underpinned our programme of action, namely: putting people first and engaging communities, delivering basic services,
good governance, and sound financial management and building institutional capability. Taking municipalities to a sustainability phase
and repositioning them as engines that drive the growth of our economy is a mission of our generation as leaders in the sixth
administration.

Our core function as the Department remains the provision of support to municipalities and traditional structures. Properly empowered,
both institutions are then able to fulfil their mandate in serving our communities. Our support is wide-ranging but also tailor-made to
the needs of specific municipalities. In pursuing our tasks, we became mindful of the fact that the development of our local economies
is indispensable to the overall process of raising the standard of living of our people. The fact that the KZN Community Satisfaction
Survey 2018 has indicated that almost half (46.3%) of the respondents in the survey were “outright dissatisfied” with the general
performance of their local municipality and about a third (39%) “Outright dissatisfied” with the performance of Provincial Government
remains a concern. The survey further illustrated that, more than half (52.8%) of respondents feel that, we, as a Province are performing
poorly on eradicating fraud and corruption, promoting agriculture, enhancing entrepreneurism and SMMEs and promoting accountable
government. The population of KZN also highlighted Job Creation as the number one priority. In terms of Batho Pele, the majority of
residents feel that the Province does not implement the principles of information, courtesy and value for money. Challenges in
municipalities differ and the analysis of these challenges is crucial in order for services to be delivered efficiently and effectively.
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The KZN PGDP addresses the challenges of poverty, inequality and unemployment. In order to alleviate these challenges, municipalities
need to address the issue of service delivery in particular the access to basic services by communities. It is our responsibility, as a
Province, to create a better environment for the citizens of Kwazulu-Natal by providing them with water, electricity and basic sanitation.

Taking cognisance of the status of the Province, the Department contributed on improving the status by providing support to municipalities
and traditional institutions in the following areas:

. Functionality of Inter-Governmental Relations (IGR);

. Administrative management;

. Accountability of governance institutions;

. Decision making through citizen participation;

. Government led job creation programmes;

. Coordination of service delivery (water, electricity and sanitation);
. Adaptation to climate change; and

. Disaster Management.

The Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs has a mandate, through the Constitution, to support and strengthen
the capacity of municipalities to manage their own affairs, exercise their powers, to perform their duties and to see to the effective
performance by municipalities. The Local Government Audit by the Auditor-General of South Africa has been painting a grim picture
of the state of municipalities in KZN Province, with the audit results indicating regression over the years. The Department undertook
a process of conducting comprehensive assessments on the status of Local Government and Traditional Councils in the Province.
The Department came up with a comprehensive, evidence-based turn-around strategy and targeted support plans to be implemented
over time. The Department remains committed to provide targeted support to the municipalities and traditional institutions to ensure
that they remain fully compliant with the legislations, promote public accountability and ethical behaviour at all times.
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Programme 1: Administration

The purpose of this Programme is to support the Ministry and all other Programmes in the Department with support services, including
the financial management of the Department. The Office of the MEC provides strategic policy direction and leadership to the Department
in line with its mandates. The Office on the Head of Department is central to the day-to-day running of the Department. Established
a Clean Audit Committee in order to improve the audit outcome of the Department, to monitor the Audit Findings, to monitor the
implementation of remedial actions and provide weekly progress on the approved actions. The committee acts as an early warning
system for the Department, which enables it to identify gaps and to address them.

Departmental programmes have continuously aimed to achieve less than a 2% variance on expenditure in accordance with the PFMA.
To achieve this, all four programmes were supported with proper budget management practices. The Department compiled and
submitted all the required in-year monitoring reports on expenditure to Provincial Treasury within the stipulated deadlines. Effective
monitoring of the procurement plan to ensure that budget is spent in accordance to plans. There is a noted improvement in the payment
of suppliers within 30 days. In the 2019/20 financial year, 98% of suppliers were paid within 30 days; compared to 94.75% in 2018/19
and 90.46% in 2017/18 financial years. Traditional councils have had their physical assets verified, and registers accurately updated
to facilitate uniformity. The Department has also trained TC secretaries on the implementation of financial practice notes and spot
checks were carried out to ensure that the financial management practice notes have been implemented.

The Department capacitated all staff according to the Departmental Training plan. Training includes Protocol, breaking barriers, Ethics,
Sexual Harassment, Conflict resolution, SMS Khaedu course and orientation training for new appointments and interns. Employee
Wellness is an integral part of employee performance; hence, the Department provided staff with quarterly wellness testing at all
offices. Put measures in place in order to effectively deal with internal disciplinary cases. These measures include the decentralisation
of the disciplinary process.

The Department used Risk Register and Risk Management reports to minimise risk through early warning systems. Based on the
Auditor General findings, the Department developed an Audit Improvement Strategy, compiled reports to respond to previous year's
audit findings and to prevent recurrence of audit findings. An Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy was developed and approved.
Following on from this, conducted fraud awareness campaigns in all ten districts. The Departmental Risk Management Committee
is constantly monitoring the implementation of the strategy. The Provincial Internal Audit Services (PIAS) in Provincial Treasury
conducted a follow-up on the implementation of Fraud Prevention Improvement Plans of all Departments.

—l e —



COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS « ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Programme 2: Local Governance

The purpose of the programme is to coordinate, support, promote and enhance governance, administration and participation in local
government. The Department was able to keep its commitment to providing effective support to local government institutions for
strengthened governance, promote sound financial management, enhance public participation and improve capacity of municipalities
to accelerate service delivery.

The Department conducted a State of Local Government Assessment, with the purpose of having baseline understanding of functionality
of all municipalities within the Province. Conducted an assessment in all 54 municipalities in June 2019. The following three focal
areas were the focus for the assessment: these include Political and Administrative Stability, Sound Financial Management and Basic
Service Delivery. The Department communicated the assessment results to all the 54 municipalities. The Department produced the
Assessment Report and presented on the 6th of August 2019 at the Premier's Coordinating Forum. The Department further developed
54 Municipal Support Plans were developed. All 54 municipalities adopted the Municipal Support Plans. The Departmental Nerve
Centre continuous monitor the implementation of the Municipal Support Plans through an established Nerve Centre Structure meeting,
which meets fortnightly, and through Quarterly Performance Reviews where the Department conducts municipal visits to verify progress
made. The Department supported municipalities in the implementation of the individual municipal support plans on issues of viability,
unfunded budgets, debt and indigent management to improve financial position. In November 2019, Provincial Treasury engaged
17 municipalities who had unfunded budgets and had adjustment budgets prepared. All 17 municipalities had tabled their revised
budgets to their Councils.

Following the 2019 National Elections, the Department supported municipalities in the filling of councilor vacancies through facilitating
the by-elections in various wards. However, there were challenges with the postponement of by-elections as granted by the electoral
court in Jozini and Mtubatuba municipalities. This necessitated the review of the relevant legislations to identify and rectify to avoid
similar challenges in future in consultation with the South African Local Government Association (SALGA). The Department and
SALGA conducted assessments to identify breaches of the Code of Conduct (CoC) for Councillors.

The Department further supported the municipalities towards the filing of critical at the senior management level such as Municipal
Managers and Chief Financial Officers and conducting of competency assessments. The Department continued to assess reports
submitted to the MEC by councils to ensure the employment of competent and qualifying senior managers in the municipal positions.
The Department facilitated the compilation of the Local Government Handbook for municipalities towards guiding them to fulfil their
legislative mandate. Furthermore, the Department provided hands-on and strategic support to the municipalities owing ESKOM during
the 2019/20 financial year. The Department presented a report with specific recommendations on the municipalities owing ESKOM,
discussed financial assessments, payment plans, and analyzed bulk purchases against sales. The municipalities are facing revenue
challenges with debt owed. The Department underwent a process of providing additional capacity to municipalities, through the
procurement of experts. As part of the support, the Department placed a Financial and Governance Experts at Msunduzi Local
Municipality. Further placed a Finance and technical experts at Mpofana Local Municipality. Established a Provincial Coordinating
Forum on Government Debt to deal with this challenge. Furthermore, the Department initiated and launched the Masakhane Campaign
on the 12th of November 2019 at Ray Nkonyeni Local Municipality in Ugu District Municipality. It started with a stakeholder engagement
of about 150 rate-payers' representatives, Business Chamber, Business Forums, Government representatives and Councillors. The
media coverage included newspaper ads, media statements, TV interviews and onsite broadcasting. The purpose of the campaign
is to educate, encourage, inform and create awareness to citizens and other consumers about the need to pay for services (revenue
enhancement).

The Department held Back to Basics Strategic Sessions with municipalities and sector partners to ensure their alignment with municipal
support plans. Further integrated all municipal service delivery issues identified by the LG Specialists with B2B issues. Compiled and
facilitated progress reports through weekly Nerve Centre meetings. Referred the identified issues to the relevant units for action. Local
Government Specialists continued to work in collaboration with municipalities, through individual visits, identifying challenges, implement
project plans to address issues raised and resolve issues that are hampering service.

Inter-Governmental Relations remains instrumental for mobilising the distinctive efforts, capacities, leadership and resources of each
sphere towards service delivery and government defined development objectives. The Department is working towards improving the
functionality of IGR Structures to ensure that they are fully functional in accordance with the IGR Framework. MuniMEC is an IGR
structure established to be a consultative forum between KZN COGTA and the municipalities. Provided opportunity to interact with
local government in the true expression of the concept of cooperative governance though the MuniMEC, stakeholders from all the
spheres of government. The Department monitored and supported municipalities on the implementation of the Strategic Framework
on Councillor Oversight (including Standard reporting templates for municipal oversight structures) to ensure that they fulfil their
oversight mandate. The oversight structures include the Council, Executive Committees, Portfolio Committees and Municipal Public
Accounts Committees (MPACs). The Department designed an audit improvement strategy together with the Provincial Treasury to
fast track the improvement of the audit outcomes of the 33 unqualified municipalities. The Department provided support in providing
advice to municipalities providing adequate responses on the communication audit findings raised by the Auditor General.

—— sl —
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The Department further supported municipalities towards ensuring their compliance with local government legislation and policies
as well as the Municipal Systems Act regulations. Section 81 of the Municipal Structures Act allows traditional leaders to participate
in the proceedings of municipal councils in order to facilitate cooperative decision-making on service delivery and development
programmes that affect traditional communities. The Department supported municipalities in improving the participation of Traditional
Leaders at municipal level. Effective integrated planning is crucial for the functioning of Local Government Institutions and for the
acceleration of service delivery. The Department ensures the development of legally compliant IDPs through effective and efficient
management of the Provincial IDP Management and Support Plan, which envisages being a catalyst between Community-Based
Plans, IDPs and Operation Sukuma Sakhe. The Department is providing Universal support in the implementation of ward operational
plans in all 870 wards. Municipalities are supported with the alignment of Ward Based Plans to the IDP, SDIBP and the implementation
of ward operational plans with the aim of delivering services which address community needs.

The country as a whole is experiencing a daunting economic climate and there is a continuous need to rationalise public expenditure
at all levels of government. Despite this challenge, the Department remains focussed and committed to deliver a high quality service
to municipalities, which will enable them to be responsive to the needs of the communities in Kwazulu-Natal. Councillor development
is imperative for service delivery and the Department has further developed a capacity-building plan aimed at empowering councillors
and municipal officials in line with the Capacity Building Strategy.

Programme 3: Development and Planning

The key objective of Chapter 8 of the National Development Plan is to ensure a transformed Human Settlement and have a strong
and efficient spatial planning system well integrated across the spheres of government. This will result in a balance between spatial
equity, economic opportunities and environmental sustainability. To contribute towards the achievement of this objective the Department
supported municipalities to improve the spatial location of services in line with the Provincial Spatial Planning guidelines and frameworks.
The Department supported all municipalities in the Province to produce Spatial Development Frameworks (SDF) that is compliant
with Spatial Planning Guidelines. The total geographic area of the Province that is under adopted Municipal Planning Schemes and
Land Use Systems with the aim of improving economic development and infrastructure development in rural towns, as tracked through
mapping in Geographic Information System (GIS). Mapped all disaster incidents in the Province in GIS and analysis was performed
to determine if relevant early warnings were received from the South African Weather Services and passed on to the affected parties
prior to their occurrence.

The Department successfully supported initiatives that act as catalysts for further development, create job opportunities and open
up potential for further investment. These relates to implementing programmes that are aimed at creating work opportunities as means
to respond to the rapid increasing need to address high rates of unemployment. These Departmental programmes include, Expanded
Public Works Programme, Food for Waste, Corridor Development, Small Town Rehabilitation and Community Service Centre (CSC)
construction. The Community Works Programme is based on community-driven partnerships and strives to provide an employment
safety net in recognition of the fact that sustainable employment. In building municipal capacity, the Department, supported the District
Development Agency programme created for the facilitation and realisation of larger scale local economic development (LED)
investment projects and programmes thereby unlocking the economic development potential of the district. KZN COGTA embarked
on a support programme to ensure that District Development Agencies are responding to the call for radical socio-economic
transformation. Municipalities have a critical role to play in South Africa in providing efficient and effective basic services, which
contribute towards an effective environment for doing business. The Department continued to support municipalities to implement
the Red Tape Reduction programme.

The Department further supported ten districts and the metro to implement Local Economic Development projects aligned to municipal
strategies. The purpose of this support is to improve medium term economic development planning, aligned to national and provincial
plans and to promote job creation at local level. The corridor development and revitalization of small towns are the key programme
for the Department to increase investors' appetite towards the development of previously disadvantaged areas with a focus on Central
Business District (CBD) roads and other critical infrastructure. The Department implemented the following four Corridor Development
Programmes for the benefit of local municipalities and communities:

Imbube Cultural Village in uPhongolo Local Municipality
Mandela Capture Site Upgrade in Umngeni Local Municipality
Kokstad Cultural Village in Greater Kokstad Local Municipality
Manaye Precinct Upgrade in Msunduzi Local Municipality

PO

The Department further implemented the Small Town Rehabilitation Programme through the following five projects:

Richmond SMME facility in Richmond Local Municipality

Umzimkhulu SMME facility in Umzimkhulu Local Municipality

Edumbe Market Stalls in Edumbe Local Municipality

Skhemelele SMME facility in Umhlabuyalingana Local Municipality
Manguzi CBD and Stormwater in Umhlabuyalingana Local Municipality

aghrwpb=
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The Department further undertook an initiative to implement a Smart Centre Model in the Community Service Centres. About twelve
CSCs have free WIFI access allowing youth to access the internet for job opportunities and youth programmes. Connected about
twenty-one CSCs to the Internet and thirteen CSCs have functional ICT Tele-Centres. This has allowed youth to access the internet
in addition to ICT training. A full implementation of the Smart Centre Model will be achieved guided by the policy framework and budget
availability in the 20/21 financial year. Infrastructure development remains a key priority to ensure that the province's infrastructure
in all municipalities is able to support the economic and population growth. Water and electricity infrastructure development backlog
is taking priority to plug the investment gap and promote business activities. Deterioration of infrastructure remains a concern through
inadequate maintenance. The Operation and Maintenance support programme continued to be implemented in the municipalities.
This programme assists with an inventory of fixed assets, condition assessments, geo-spatial records, maintenance manuals and
plans. The Department provided the Yellow Plants and Trucks to various districts as part of Operation Khawuleza, which was launched
in Newcastle on the 19th of September 2019. These includes TLBs, Graders, Excavators, Roller foot pad, Smooth Rollers, Refuse
compactor trucks, Water tankers, Honey suckers and Walk Back Rollers. The plant will assist the municipalities address issues such
as fixing of roads, provision of water and for sanitation and other infrastructure needs.

Kwazulu-Natal Province experienced a number of weather hazards in the form of severe storms and drought, which has had a
devastating impact on communities. The Provincial Growth and Development Plan aims to get the Province to a position where we
are able to effectively anticipate, respond and mitigate the effects of climate change. The Department, in partnership with the South
African Weather Services, disseminates warning for disaster incidents and continuously aims at responding to disaster events. The
drought and flood management became the biggest lesson for the province and the country. In addition, the Department provided
relevant relief measures to those affected and actively assisted municipalities to respond the challenge of climate change. There was
a joint effort from KZN COGTA, Department of Economic Development Tourism & Environmental Affairs and Office of the Premier
to host the Climate Change Summit in August 2019.

Programme 4: Traditional Institutional Management

Chapter 12 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, recognises the Institutions of traditional Leadership, the status
and roles of Traditional Leaders. It provides for the establishment of the houses of traditional leadership. The institutions of traditional
leadership are instrumental and central for the sustainable democratic government. The Department is poised to play a key strategic
role not only in assisting the institution of traditional leadership to transform itself; but also in coordinating the traditional affairs activities,
promoting good governance and enhancing service delivery in the Traditional Communities. Traditional Leaders within the Province
play an important role in the development of our rural communities and the Department will continue to support the development of
this institution. The Department is committed to address the challenges that affected the TC elections to enable the community to
exercise their democratic rights. In order to ascertain the support that would need to provided going forward and to ensure that the
support provided is relevant and appropriate; the Department undertook a comprehensive assessment in all Traditional Institutions
in the Province. This assessment focused on the functionality of the Traditional Councils and Local Houses. The main focal areas of
assessment were on their execution of their roles and functions, infrastructure physical conditions, administrative capacity and their
challenges.

e — el — L —
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The Department provided sufficient resources (human, financial and infrastructural) to transform the landscape in the functional domain
of Traditional Affairs. Furthermore, the Department rolled out a capacity-building programme for effective and efficient functioning of
our Traditional Councils. The Department continued to support Traditional Councils on land allocation processes, survey of boundaries
where there are uncertainties between the communities for the facilitation of rural development. Furthermore, the Department has
embarked on mapping and preparing proclamations for newly restored amaKhosi and as well as the proclamations for the traditional
councils who were previously proclaimed as community authorities. In order to ensure good governance in the Institution of Traditional
Leadership, the Department continued to provide effective governance and conflict management support to amaKhosi and the
Traditional Councils. The Department remain committed to engage amaKhosi and advise them of the importance of updating
genealogies, with the aim limiting the number of recognition disputes. The Department further supported the cultural events hosted
by amaKhosi in their respective traditional communities, as amaKhosi are custodians of culture. In consultation with the Office of His
Majesty the King, the Department facilitated the installation and the recognition of amaKhosi in order to continue with the restoration
of the dignity of the Institution of Traditional Leadership. Further held numerous engagements with imiNdeni yobuKhosi on the passing
on of amaKhosi. Whilst some imiNdeni were cooperative with the Department in the identification and subsequent recognition of
amaBambabukhosi, others were reluctant as they were in dispute over who is next in line to be recognized as iNkosi, making it difficult
to finalise some of the appointments of amaBambabukhosi in the interim. As a result, the War Room was established and met frequently
to focus on clearing these disputes.

It became clear that the updating of the family trees is critical to address some of the emanating succession disputes. As a result,
the Department embarked on the process of updating all family trees with good participation of imiNdeni. The Department strives to
ensure that at least 3 out of 5 iziNdlu zobuKhosi are represented for the meeting to continue. This is ensuring through an uMndeni
authentication process facilitated by Anthropological Services. The issues of the payment of Izinduna and TC Secretaries remains a
challenge. Collective effort is required between national and the province to address this challenge effectively.

2.2 Service Delivery Improvement Plan

The department has completed and implemented a Service Delivery Improvement Plan. The tables below highlight the service delivery
plan and the actual achievements.

Main services and standards

Key Service 1
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Batho Pele arrangements with beneficiaries (Consultation access etc.)
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Key Service 2

Batho Pele arrangements with beneficiaries (Consultation access etc.)
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Batho Pele arrangements with beneficiaries (Consultation access etc.)

Service delivery information tool

Complaints mechanism

2.3 Organisational environment

The Department is structured around four programmes which are as follows.

Programme 1 is Administration and is the support service for the other three Programmes by ensuring that they are capacitated
to perform their functions.

Programme 2 is Local Governance responsible for supporting Local Government structures in the municipalities on governance,
administration, financial management, legislative mandates of the municipalities, public participation, capacity building and
monitoring the performance of the municipalities.

Programme 3 is Development and Planning responsible to provide planning and development support to the municipalities
in KwaZulu-Natal through implementing programmes to accelerate service delivery in the communities. This include providing
support related to disaster management, infrastructure for basic services, spatial planning and enhancing Local Economic
Development.

Programme 4 supports the Institutions of Traditional leadership on governance, conflict management, partnerships and
participation on Municipal Councils in terms of Section 81 of the Municipal Structures Act 1998 (Act No.117 of 1998).

As of 31 March 2020 KZN COGTA had a total of 1934 filled posts. Males constitute 46.74% (904) while females constitute 53.25%
(1030) of the workforce. At the senior management level males constitutes 45% (27/60) and females is 55% (33/60). The recruitment
and selection processes of the Department are categorically focused towards achieving the employment levels in accordance with
the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) Transformation targets.

Going forward, the Department will continue to focus on the following areas of employment policy or practice barriers, to drive the
achievement of our employment equity targets as stipulated in the Employment Equity Plan; recruitment procedures, appointments,
training and development, promotions, succession and experience planning, and retention of designated personnel.

——elE —
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2.3 Organisational environment

It is the responsibility of the Department to organise itself in a manner that will maximise service delivery whilst fulfilling its mandate.
The Department has examined its internal organizational environment and agrees that it needs to reconfigure its working arrangement
to enhance the responsibility of co-ordination within and outside the Department. This environmental change will have very significant
impact in the next five years. With the new reconfigured arrangement, the Department anticipates becoming more vigorously responsive
to the needs of its clients. In addition, filling of critical posts remains critical for Cogta. Continuous capacitating of employees as per
Personal Development Plans will work towards improving the service delivery.

2.4 Key policy developments and legislative changes

There is none that has a material effect or impact on the Department's mandate or operations.

3. STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS

COGTA strategic goals and objectives were conceptualised from the priorities in the NDP and PGDP. The PGDP was analysed and
issues relevant to the Department were identified and developed into 6 strategic goals and a number of strategic objectives to support
each goal. The following goals and objectives will be implemented over five years through each strategic intervention.
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4. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME
4.1 PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

Programme Purpose

This programme act as the support service for the other three Programmes in the Department; by ensuring that they are capacitated
to perform their functions of rendering quality services to the municipalities and traditional institutions. This programme consists of
the following sub-programmes and their specific achievements:

Office of the MEC

The Office of the MEC provided the strategic direction to the Department and applied rigorous processes to ensure compliance with
the Executive Committee requirements in order for the Department to achieve its mandate. To ensure legislative compliance of the
Department to its mandate to the Legislature, all five strategic documents were tabled to legislature as per statutory requirements.
These strategic documents include 2019/2020 Annual Performance Plans; 2018/19 Annual Performance Reports; 2019/20 Budget
Speech, Section 47 of MSA Report, Section 131 of MFMA Report.

Some of the events and community outreach programmes held were as follows:

a) Mandela Day: the MEC hosted the Mandela Day at Harry Gwala District Municipality on the 18th of July 2019. The food
parcels and new wheelchairs were distributed to the elderly and presented newly build houses.

b) Women's Day: An inter-Generational Dialogue was held on the 29th of August 2019 at Umzimkhulu Local Municipality (ward

6) regarding Ukuthwala Kwezintombi. On the 12th of March 2020, the MEC hosted the Women's Day Outreach Programme

at the Olive Convention Centre which was attended by approximately 800 participants consisting of AmaKhosi, Mayors,
Councillors and Cogta Women in Management.

c) World Aids Day: The MEC hosted the World Aids Day event at Umzimkhulu Local Municipality on the 1st of December 2019.
d) Day of the Elderly: The MEC hosted the Day of the Elderly celebration at Alfred Duma Local Municipality on the 20th of
December 2019.

Office of the Head of Department

The Office of the HOD played an oversight and ensured that the 2018/19 Annual Financial Statements and the 2018/19 Annual
Performance Report are compiled and submitted to the Auditor-General and Provincial Treasury within the prescribed timeframes.
This office further ensured that service delivery issues are facilitated; monitored the implementation of strategic evaluations
recommendation within the Department related to Enterprise Content Management, Internal Control, Municipal Performance Management
System, Section 81 and Expanded Public Works Programme. This office further monitored the support provided to the 10 Districts
and Metro on the implementation of Operation Sukuma Sakhe. The Department further updated and implemented the change
management guidelines.
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Human Resource Management and Development

This sub-programme ensured the implementation of the Human Resources Implementation Plan and the effective implementation
of the Organisational Structure within the Department. The filled posts were continuously analysed against the approved organisational
structure. The implementation of Operations Management Framework was monitored with specific Standard Operating Procedures
(SOPs) developed. About 16 SOPs were developed and helped to guide the departmental internal processes and procedures. The
Department ensured the implementation of the Diversity Management Strategy through conducting a Casual Day for Disability
awareness; holding Men's event on July 2019; hosting Women in Management Forum in August 2019; conducted Disability Awareness
Campaigns at Harry Gwala, Umzinyathi, Umkhanyakude District Municipalities, and eThekwini Metro for officials.

The Departmental staff was capacitated in accordance with the Departmental Training Plan and some of the training includes Protocol,
breaking barriers, Ethics, Sexual Harassment, Conflict Resolution, Induction Training, Theory of Change, Mentoring for Growth, Risk
Management and the Project Khaedu Course. Employee Wellness is an integral part of employee performance; hence, the Department
provided staff with quarterly wellness testing at all offices. Financial Disclosures are rendered as per the DPSA and Provincial Policy.
Achieved 100% compliance rate in respect of all e-disclosures as prescribed by the ministerial directive and 96% for other levels as
per Provincial Policy.

The Department implemented the public service internship programme with the focus on the youth, women and people with disabilities;
with the 74 interns placed in across sub-programmes. The Department further extended the duration of the internship as prescribed
by the DPSA to 24 months. The Department also provided about 174 youth bursaries and 72 employee bursaries to encourage
education in the Province. In the process of enforcing the policy directive to remove work experience as a requirement for the entry
positions in the Department has been removed from 2019 to promote job opportunity for youth. The HIV/AIDS & TB Management,
Health and Productivity Management and Wellness Management Policies were implemented and monitored with reports submitted
to DPSA.

Information Technology and Auxiliary Services

The Department committed to decentralize its services to the District Level and to have Functional District Office to be easily accessible
to the communities we serve. In this process, office facilities were identified in all District Offices, framework and the plan was developed.
Office accommodation was made available to three Local Government Specialists; one at llembe District and two at Mayville Offices.
Office accommodation would be made available in District offices, should there be a request to house new appointments of the
identified officials, being Local Government Specialists, Service Delivery Facilitators and ICT interns. All seventeen Departmental
building are compliant with the Occupational Health & Safety Act, Environment, Risk and Quality (SHERQ) management policy and
remedial actions taken on all the anomalies found. About 251 Departmental fleet was managed.

The ICT Steering Committee and Operational Committee are established and are meeting as per ICT Corporate Governance Policy
and Charter implemented. The ICT projects are being implemented according to IT Strategy Plan. The SITA Service Level Agreements
enforced. Disaster Recovery Road Map implemented (including off site storage). The IT security policy was implemented with
vulnerability assessment and penetration testing being done through using the Tipping point devise to view and monitor any loopholes.

Financial Management and Supply Chain Management

The Department always strive towards complying with all legislations including the PFMA requirements. As a result, all 28 statutory
reports were produced and submitted to Provincial Treasury by the stipulated deadlines. This helped to monitor the Department's
financial performance. To advance the growth of the SMME Sector of the economy, 74% of procurement awards were made to
SMMEs, Cooperatives, Township/Rural Enterprises and people with disabilities. In order to ensure suppliers are paid in 30 days as
per SCM requirements, 98% of suppliers are paid within the set period and achieved 98.5% on the implementation of Procurement
Plan. To address weaknesses in accountability in relations to movable assets, quarterly verifications are conducted, within all 17
Departmental buildings and 257 Traditional Administrative Centres and 267 Traditional Councils supported to implement the financial
management practice notes.

The Department has improved from receiving a Qualified Audit Opinion in the 17/18 Financial Year to receiving an unqualified opinion
for the 18/19 financial year. The Clean Audit Committee, which is chaired by the Accounting Officer, will continue to sit fortnightly to
deal with financial and non-financial matters that could adversely impact the audit outcomes. The audit improvement strategy for
2018/19 was updated and monitored by Departmental Internal Control Unit to determine if the action plans as reflected in the audit
reports, were implemented by risk owners/management.

The Department obtained an unqualified audit opinion on Vote 11 and obtained a clean audit on the Traditional Levies Account in
the 2018/19 Financial Year.
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Internal Control

The Department implemented an anti-fraud and corruption strategies, Internal Audit Improvement Strategies and investigated fraud
cases. Furthermore, eight Risk Management Workshops were conducted to Strengthened accountability of governance institutions.
In dealing with the challenges on the payment of Izinduna, monthly audits were conducted to ensure effective implementation of the
Standard Operating Procedures as well as to eliminate any discrepancies. Workshops were conducted on Whistle Blowing policy and
on the implementation of Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. The Risk assessment on Ethics and Corruption Risk Practices were
conducted and had the report on Fraud red flags was reviewed.

Strategic Planning, Monitoring, Evaluation, Policy and Research

It is important for the Department to improve the means in which it delivers services to its clients. As a result, the Department monitored
the implementation of the Service Delivery Improvement Plan. In this process, about eight stakeholder consultations were held in
relation to the SDIP both internally and externally. It is important to always consider improving the morale of the staff. An excellence
programme was implemented and it recognised the employee of the month on a monthly basis that will culminated in the Employee
of the Year Award. Monitored community concerns as per the complaints management policy and complaints received were registered
and referred to Municipal Audit for further investigation. Developed Performance Plans that are aligned to National and Provincial
imperative.

The Department maintained the Clean Audits on performance information in 2018/19 financial year. Monitored the transfers and
expenditures on conditional grants in accordance to the Transfer Manual. About eight periodic evaluations were conducted to inform
planning and to act as an early warning system and further monitored the implementation of evaluation recommendations monitored
for implementation.

It is critical to ensure that the Department has updated policies in line with the relevant legislations. Compliance. As a result, 25 policies
were reviewed and the implementation of 48 policies were monitored to ensure that identified risks are addressed and operational
efficiency is improved. About eight research projects were undertaken to unearth knew knowledge to inform the departmental strategies
and plans.
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Legal Services

The Department monitored the compliance with all line function and transversal legislation to ensure that all business units operate
within the legal mandate of the Department and complies with legal prescripts affecting Provincial Government, Local Government
and Traditional Affairs. Monitored the compliance of Service Delivery Decisions with PAJA to promote efficient and good governance,
and create a culture of accountability, openness and transparency in the public administration or in the exercise of a public power or
the performance of a public function, by giving effect to the right to just administrative action.

About 51% of cases were completed within 90 days to ensure speedy administration of justice in compliance with the completion of
cases as per the prescribed timeframe from DPSA from the day the hearing has been set. Challenges were experienced in the
finalisation of formal disciplinary cases. These included procedural postponements as result of availability of role-players during
hearings and appeals brought forward on sanctions made.

Corporate Communications

The Department implemented the communication strategy through ensuring that programmes and articles were inserted on Snap
news. Sending media monitoring on the departmental notices platform to all officials. Various officials were given an opportunity to
be interviewed and inserted on our 'One on One with..." platform. All departmental programmes were updated on the departmental
website after every event. All government campaigns and events were prioritised and supported. Photography, videography services
were rendered.

The speeches, media statements, media alerts were produced. The departmental branding was monitored in accordance to the
corporate identity on the approved branding manual. All government campaigns and events were prioritised and supported such as
disaster awareness campaign, uLwaluko and School functionality programme. The implementation of the Local Government Back
to Basics communication plan was monitored in 54 municipalities to ensure that municipalities implement the Back to Basics
Communication Programme so that communities are informed.
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STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDERPERFORMANCE

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS

No changes were made to the planned target
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LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

Sub-programme expenditure

4.2 PROGRAMME 2: LOCAL GOVERNANCE
Programme Purpose:

The purpose of this Programme is to co-ordinate, support, promote and enhance governance administration and public participation
in local government. Local Governance is responsible for supporting Local Government structures in the municipalities. The focus is
to promote good governance; to coordinate municipal developments; to coordinate municipal IDP processes; to support municipalities
to maintain sound financial management systems; to monitor the implementation of legislative mandates and policies of the municipalities;
to promote community development and public participation; to enhance capacity and monitor the performance of the municipalities.
This programme coordinated a comprehensive State of Local Government Assessment and developed support plans for all 54
municipalities. This programme consists of the following sub-programmes and their specific achievements:
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Local Government Specialists

This unit plays a significant role in coordinating the Departmental support to municipalities in order to and facilitate the resolution of
service delivery issues that are hampering development. This is done through monitoring of the action plans and channelling service
delivery issues to the relevant line functions and ultimately monitor progress. This helps to dispose of the silo mentality in order to
maximise impact at municipal level. All 54 Municipalities were visited various times and had support plans developed and implemented.
Service Delivery issues were facilitated through weekly Nerve Centre meetings, municipal Verifications weeks, and Briefing sessions
of Operation Masakhane, Joint EXCOs and District Operation Sukuma Sakhe Forums.

Intergovernmental relations

The Department took a stance to promote Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) as the Game Changer in the realisation of National,
Provincial and Local Plans. Various support was provided to the ten District Intergovernmental relations structures to ensure their
functionality. All ten Districts have functional IGR Structures.

IGR as a Game Changer: Conducted a ccomprehensive assessment on the functionality and effectiveness of the District IGR Structures.
The Department supported District municipalities in hosting District Joint EXCOs, to ensure that service delivery challenges, which
need to be resolved through Intergovernmental relations. District Fora are utilizing the strategic agenda framework developed as the
basis for the discussion at these engagements. Further, the IGR Toolkit have been developed to be used as a framework in
implementing functional IGR Structures.

The Department has facilitated two political MuniMec's, eleven Joint EXCO's with both Councillors and Amakhosi, numerous
engagements with Amakhosi, and stakeholders including SALGA, ESKOM and MISA to underpin the pronouncements of the 6th
Administration that is seen as changing the game for Local Government. The Department provided strategic oversight and guidance
to local government and monitored the implementation of these game-changer plans through the IGR structures, namely MuniMec,
TRADSMEC, Provincial Speakers' Forum, Joint EXCOs and district engagements. MISA and Provincial Treasury entered into the
Memoranda of Understanding (MOU)..

IDP Coordination

Proper planning in municipalities is critical for decision making towards service delivery and sustainable development. To promote
citizen participation in decision making of municipalities, the Department supported all 44 local municipalities in aligning their Ward
based Plans to their respective Integrated Development Plans (IDPs). The Department has also supported in the convening of 10
District Traditional Leadership and Interfaith Forums throughout the Province, which aim to coordinate interfaith to promote social
cohesion and nation building.

The Department is committed in ensuring alignment between municipal Integrated Development Plans and sector plans to one another
for effective service delivery. The Department supported all 54 municipalities in reviewing their 2019/20 adopted IDPs in line with the
legal requirements of the Municipal Systems Act. The Department coordinated the assessment findings with the intent of optimising
alignment of sectoral coordination of provincial and national priorities. Further to this, the Department conducted the Alignment
sessions to enhance sectoral coordination and alignment in municipal and provincial planning instruments. IDPs were assessed to
ensure their alignment to the DGDPs and Departmental Sector Plans and address the priorities of the 6th Administration.

The Department is continuously implementing Social Cohesion programmes in partnership with Interfaith Sector, Municipalities and
Traditional Leadership to address social ills in Municipalities through special Programmes of the Municipal IDPs. The Department
further implemented a Programme for social cohesion conversations through the Social Cohesion conversations held at Umzinyathi
District, Msinga and Nquthu Local Municipalities. Further to this, the Department convened quarterly District Traditional Leadership
and Interfaith Forums within the Province. These forums aim to enhance the role of Traditional leadership and Religious community
in moral regeneration. Convened the District Traditional leadership and Interfaith Forums at Uthukela, Umkhanyakude, King Cetshwayo,
llembe, Harry Gwala, Umgungundlovu, Umzinyathi, Amajuba and Zululand District Municipalities.

It became critical for the Department to entrench the participation of AmaKhosi in the IDP processes. Members of Local Houses of
Traditional Leaders were workshopped on the IDP Guidelines. The Department facilitated ten District Joint EXCOs sessions and
brought together the Councillors and the Amakhosi from each district to discuss and deliberate on matters of the state of local
government and local house of traditional institutions.
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Municipal Performance, Monitoring, Reporting and Evaluation

The performance of municipalities is central to service delivery. All 54 municipalities were to supported to institutionalise Performance
Management System. This was done through the development of Annual Performance Reports, assessments of draft IDPs, monitoring
of Internal Audit Reports and Performance Audit Committee meeting compliance. Supported 54 municipalities to implement response
measures to Auditor-General (AG) Report on Performance Information/Predetermined objectives. The Department used platforms
such as District Technical Advisory Committees to monitor progress and identify further support needed by affected municipalities.
All 54 municipalities were compliant were compliant with single reporting mechanism.

The Department conducted Back to Basic assessments for all 54 municipalities with performance information captured into the GIS
system. All 11 District had their profiles and dashboard updated quarterly. Further facilitated and monitored the implementation of
the service delivery issues by the sector Departments.

Municipal Governance and Administration

The Department supported twelve municipalities on the implementation of the Strategic Framework, which included the provision,
and conducting of workshops on the Delegations framework, MPAC Terms of References, Guideline on Municipal Oversight and the
Roles and Responsibilities. Further provided hands-on support to thirteen municipalities to improve oversight capacity through functional
oversight structures.

Compliance of municipalities with the implementation of Local Government Legislation is important for good governance. Assessed
all 54 municipalities on their compliance with the Municipal Systems Act, Municipal Structures Act and Municipal Finance Management
Act. As a result, the Department supported about eighteen municipalities to comply based on the support plan. Further monitored
all 54 municipalities on the implementation of recruitment, leave, overtime, delegations as well as municipal S&T policies. The by-
laws are helpful in maintain law and order in the municipalities. As a result, the Department drafted and gazetted five by-laws during
the financial year. These by-laws are as follows: Cemeteries and Crematoria By-law, Credit Control By-law, Environmental health
By-law, Municipal Parks and Recreational Grounds By-law as well as the Sewerage By-law.

The Department supported all 54 municipalities to comply with MSA Regulations on the appointment of senior managers and on the
implementation of the Gender Policy Framework through assessing the organisational structures and the new appointments for the
senior management municipal officials. While the implementation of National Gender Policy Framework was focused on monitoring
the municipalities of appointment of women.

The Department provided hands-on and strategic support to the nine municipalities under administration through developing and
monitoring the implementation of the Recovery Plans for Uthukela District, Umzinyathi District, Richmond, Endumeni (Close out report
included), Mtubatuba, Msunduzi, Mpofana, Inkosi Langalibalele and Abaqulusi Local Municipalities. Held Intervention Steering
Committee meetings to monitor the implementation of the Recovery Plans.

Synergistic Partnerships

The Traditional Leaders are central in the decision making process on service delivery and their participation is critical. The Department
worked towards strengthening the working relationship of Amakhosi and Municipalities. About 52 municipalities have the identified
traditional leaders delegated to participate in municipal council meetings. Enabled the municipalities with recognized traditional leaders
within their jurisdictional areas to have traditional leaders participating in the legislative and executive decisions.

Municipal Forensics

The issues of fraud, corruption and maladministration cripples and hinder service delivery in general. Every year efforts are made to
fight against this scourge. The Department is reinforcing efforts within the Province, in collaboration with key stakeholders and other
law enforcement agencies to prevent, detect, and resolve instances of fraud, corruption and maladministration. Part of these efforts,
The Department supported and monitored the implementation of anti-corruption measures in all 54 municipalities. The Department
monitor the extent of the implementation of anti-corruption measures on a quarterly basis, informs the nature and extent of support
provided to municipalities, and is key in implementing the Provincial Anti-Fraud and Anti-corruption strategy. Further reviewed Fraud-
Risk Registers for all 54 municipalities

The Department assessed municipal fraud risk registers as well as municipal fraud risk assessment processes to determine whether

these are credible and effective in preventing fraud, corruption and maladministration, by appropriately mitigating the fraud risks.
Provided feedback to all assessed municipalities and identified corrective measures. Investigated all allegations of fraud, corruption
and maladministration cases reported to the Department. Further monitored the implementation of Forensic investigation recommendations
made by the Department and briefed the Executive Authority on a quarterly basis on their status.

— sl —



COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS « ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Municipal Finance

Sound financial management systems are critical for effective delivery of services by the municipalities. The Department worked
towards implementing measures to support municipalities to improve their financial management systems. The Department assessed
the budget allocated and expenditure for 54 municipalities to capital infrastructure for new constructions as well as for maintenance
and operations. The Department further assessed the public sector expenditure in accordance to the municipal IDPs and further
supported to reduce government debt for all 54 municipalities. The Department supported 51 municipalities to reduce their consumer
debts with municipal policies assessed and feedback provided. About 44 municipalities had rates revenue assessed and guided them
to comply with the Municipal Property Rates Act (MPRA).

There is an expectation for the municipalities to provide free basic services to the indigent houses as per the National Indigent Policy
Framework. Therefore, the Department supported and monitored 53 municipalities to implement and comply with the indigent policy.
Supported all 54 municipalities towards achieving clean audits to ensure sound financial management.

Public Participation

The participation of communities is central to deepen democracy and communication in the local government sphere. The ward
committees and ward operational plans provides such opportunities. Therefore, the Department supported all 44 local municipalities
towards the functionality of ward committees and on the implementation of the ward operational plans. The Department further
monitored the implementation of Sectoral Parliament's resolutions to ensure their implementation to address issues raised by Women,
Youth, Senior Citizens and People with Disabilities.

With the aim of strengthening municipal capacity to deal with service delivery/public protests, the Department supported and monitored
all 54 municipalities in ensuring that they have functional Rapid Response teams in line with the Rapid Response Strategy. The Rapid
Response teams monitored the implementation of the remedial actions in scenarios where they are not functional. Supported all 44
local municipalities to respond to community concerns, through the implementation of the electronic Integration of the Complaints
Management System. Capacitated the Municipal Officials on the implementation of the Integrated Complaints Management Systems
with a workshop for all frontline officials who handle complaints held.

Capacity Building

The Department coordinated the implementation of the Provincial Capacity Building Strategy. Some of the activities coordinated
include peer-learning session, Khaedu Methods and Perspective Training, Coaching for Leadership and Evidence Based Policy
Making. The Department provided capacity-building initiatives, which targeted municipal officials, municipal councillors and the
Institution of Traditional leadership. Capacity Building initiatives conducted in the financial year include #PressforChange Women in
Leadership Training, Disability Rights Training and National Certificate for Local Government Councillor Practices (NQF3). The National
Certificate for Local Government Councillor Practices (NQF3) training had equipped the Councillors with the necessary skills and
knowledge to better execute their duties. The training intervention built the administrative, financial management, and oversight capacity
of the Councillors.

The Department conducted the Skills Audit as per the Skills Audit Framework. The skills audit was conducted over four phases, with
phase one being preparation for the skills audit; phase 2 is conducting the skills audit, phase 3 is data processing and analysis and
phase 4 involves the presentation of the results. The Department completed Skills Audits in the five Local Municipalities (eDumbe,
Mpofana, Msunduzi, Emadlangeni, and Inkosi Langalibalele) and in two District Municipalities (Umkhanyakude and Umzinyathi) as
of March 2020.
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ACHIEVEMENTS: PROGRAMME 2
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STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDERPERFORMANCE

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS

No changes made to the planned targets

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

Sub-programme expenditure
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4.3 PROGRAMME 3: DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

Programme Purpose:

The purpose of this Programme is to promote informed integrated planning, support infrastructure development, to co-ordinate and
support the implementation of disaster prevention and mitigation measures. This programmes is responsible to support the municipalities
on the development and implementation of spatial development frameworks and land use schemes; to coordinate local economic
development within Local Government Institutions; to manage and coordinate municipal infrastructure development; and to coordinate
provincial disaster management services. This programme consists of the following sub-programmes and their specific achievements:

Spatial planning

The well-integrated spatial planning system plays a key role in improving spatial hierarchy of services in the Province. The Department
supported the municipalities to improve spatial location of services in line with the Provincial Spatial Planning guidelines. Further
conducted a provincial spatial equity analysis to promote spatial integration in the province. Developed Capital Investment and Capital
Expenditure Frameworks, which in turn informed the revision of the Provincial Spatial Development Framework. Implemented the
Provincial Framework for Spatial Equity Norms and Standards.

The Department supported all 44 local municipalities to implement land use schemes and to develop wall-to-wall Land Use Schemes
to guide decision making on land use and investments by July 2020. The support included monitoring the non-compliant municipalities
on Land Use Scheme development, facilitating legal compliance and the subdivision of Agricultural Land Act programme. Support
was provided through the transfer of grants for the development of schemes to the following 7 Municipalities, viz:- Impendle, Msinga,
Umvoti, Nkandla, Mandeni, Umdoni and Richmond Local Municipalities. The Department has also implemented the Spatial planning
norms and standards on spatial equity, which is fundamental to achieving spatial transformation outcomes highlighted by the PGDS.

The Department prioritized the development of Traditional Settlement Master Plans for traditional settlement areas to manage
development and investment within each of the Land Use Schemes. Developed eight Traditional Settlement Master Plans (TSMP)
of which three are in Mandeni and five in uMfolozi Local Municipalities. Further developed five Nodal Plans to promote growth of small
towns for eDumbe, Alfred Duma, Jozini, Nkandla and Umvoti Local Municipalities.

Development Information Services

Climate change is real and we need to make efforts to increase our adaptation to reduce its impact. One of the ways is to have early
warning systems and disseminate the warning messages to the public. The Department continuously mapped the disaster incidents
to indicate where they often occurred. The implementation of Spatial Planning Land Use Management Act (SPLUMA) and Planning
Development Act (PDA) is necessary for a well-integrated spatial planning system in the Province. Therefore, the Department mapped
all the adopted municipal schemes and PGDP projects in the Province.

The Department supported 39 municipalities on the implementation of Municipal Property Rate Act (MPRA) by updating their property
registers for municipal valuation roll maintenance. The data from the updated registers is linked to the electronic Municipal Property
Rates dashboard. Further supported all ten District and their Local Municipalities with the functionality if their Geographic Information
System (GIS) units through implementing support plans, having engagement sessions, acquisition of daily satellite data and sharing
of datasets.




COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS « ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Land use Management

There is an expectation for the municipalities to improve their response time for processing of development applications. The Department
monitored all 44 local municipalities on their adherence to time norms set for processing development applications. The findings
revealed that all 1348-development applications at municipalities have met time norms for processing. Further supported all 44
municipalities on the implementation of SPLUMA through having engagement sessions on the functionality of Municipal Appeal
Authority, Municipal Planning Tribunal, Municipal Planning Authorising Officer and Municipality Planning Tribunal Registrar. Capacitated
all 44 local municipalities on Development Administration through Site Inspection and Public Hearing Processes, registration procedures,
drafting of conditions of establishment.

The Department supported 15 municipalities in the formalisation of their towns by conducting Land rights enquiries with the aim of
improving economic development and infrastructure development in rural towns. The Land Rights enquiries were conducted at Umvoti-
Holnek, eDumbe-eDumbe Township, Alfred Duma-Mcitsheni, eMadlangeni-Vroenvlei, Umshwathi-Bhamshela, Ulundi-Ceza, Msunduzi-
Ncwadi, uPhongola-Belgrade, Mandeni-Mandeni, Okhahlamba-KwaMiya, Jozini-Ndumo, Newcastle-Ncandu Park, Big 5 Hlabisa-
Hluhluwe, Mhlabuyalingana-Ndumo and Dannhouser-Koppie Allien. The Department received about 31 boundary description requests
and were all attended to appropriately.

Local Economic Development

The districts in KZN Province have the duty to drive development and increase economic opportunities in the municipalities towards
the fight against triple challenges facing South Africa. The Department supported all ten District Development Agencies (DDA) to
develop and implement action plans after the assessments. The Department implemented the following initiatives to support the DDAs:
hosted the Provincial RASET Boot Camp and Local Economic Development (LED) winter school in August 2020; had bilateral
engagements with each of the DDAs to address their governance challenges and facilitated Strategic Planning Session for Harry
Gwala District Municipality in December 2019.

All 54 municipalities had their LED strategies assessed in line with the National Local Economic Development Framework and had
their specific support plans developed. The Department supported all 54 municipalities to implement Local Economic Development
projects in line with updated municipal LED strategies based on their respective support plans. Further supported municipalities on
the development of action plans and implementation of the Red Tape Reduction programme. The Department monitored the
implementation of the action plans across all 54 municipalities and convened the Provincial Red Tape reduction workshop in October
2019. The Department committed to place about 500 graduate interns in the municipalities under the 24 months' internship programme.
This programme will help provide capacity to the municipalities while interns are gaining valuable work related experience to develop
them for future work and business opportunities.

el —
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Community Service Centres are useful to bring services closer to the people. The Department monitored the implementation the CSC
Construction Programme for Shiyabanye, Matimatolo, Madlebe and Mvozane projects and the implementation of CSC Rehabilitation
programme. The Department supported about 22 municipalities and 30 Traditional Councils the functionality of the CSCs based on
the support plans. The Department created about 44 913 work opportunities through the Community Works Programme in municipalities
with the aim of providing employment safety nets, alleviate poverty and community development. The Department also created 1 837
employment opportunities through Expanded Public Works Programme inclusive of internal implementation programmes (Corridor,
Small town, CSC Construction etc.).

Municipal Infrastructure

The delivery of basic services is critical to improve the living conditions of the communities in the Province. This requires a coordinated
service delivery approach utilizing the existing IGR structures. The Department coordinated eleven structures for infrastructure
development and service delivery, monitored 53 municipalities on the implementation of infrastructure delivery programmes and MIG
projects. Further supported about thirteen municipalities with increasing water connection and with the provision of basic level of
sanitation. The production and supply of energy is important towards sustainable development. Therefore, the Department supported
the following municipalities on increasing the households with a source of electrical supply: Mpofana, uMsinga, Abaqulusi, Umzumbe,
Umhlabuyalingana and Umvoti Local Municipalities.

Disaster Management

Everyone is feeling the impact of climate change in the Province. The Department is responsible to ensure the implementation of the
policy frameworks, plans and strategies to reduce risks through the Provincial Disaster Management Centre (PDMC). The Department
analysed and disseminated all early warnings received from the South African Weather Services to various stakeholders through
emails, WhatsApp, social media, SMS and MEC media statements. Further supported the Disaster Management Advisory Forums
and fire brigade services in all 10 districts and in the Metro.

The Department assessed the municipalities' disaster management plans in the municipalities and ensured their integration into the
IDPs. Further activated the Operating committees in the province to deal with the effects of floods that affected the Province. Monitored
the sector department and various stakeholders on their implementation of the disaster management legislation. Supported all 10
districts and the metro to ensure that the disaster management centres remain functional at all times.
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ACHIEVEMENTS: PROGRAMME 3
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STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDERPERFORMANCE

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS

No changes made to the planned targets

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

Sub-programme expenditure
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4.4 PROGRAMME 4: TRADITIONAL INSTITUTIONAL MANAGEMENT

Purpose of the Programme

This programme aims to support and enhance the capacity of the Traditional Councils the Institutions of Traditional Leadership in
KZN Province. It provides support on the establishment and functionality of the Institution of Traditional Leadership in KZN province
for good governance. Good governance is critical for the Institutions of Traditional Leadership to provide effective support to the
communities. This programme is responsible to enhance governance and capacity of the traditional institutions in the province. This
programme consists of the following sub-programmes and their specific achievements:

Traditional Institutional Administration

Institutions of Traditional Leadership has the responsibility to uphold the principles of good governance. The Department capacitated
all eleven Local Houses and a Provincial House in line with the Provincial Capacity Building Strategy to improve their administrative
governance. About ten Amabambabukhosi were recognised by the Executive Council during the 2019/20 financial year and three
Amakhosi recognitions were concluded with three months of being vacant. The Department further monitored five initiation schools
on their compliance with the National Initiation Schools guidelines in their operations. It is the responsibility of the Department to
support the Traditional Institutions with the development of policies and guidelines. As a result, the Department developed the following
six policies and guidelines: Guideline on the appointment and removal of Izinduna, Policy on Disputes and Funerals for Amakhosi,
Policy on Recognition of Amakhosi, Policy on cultural Functions and Policy on the Role of Amakhosi in Disaster Management.

Cultural and customary way of life is embedded in the traditional community; hence, about 33 cultural platforms were supported
throughout the Province. This support is either financial or non-financial and includes the profiling of Izizwe (Traditional Communities),
studying the customs of izizwe and updating family trees, supporting heritage celebrations. The Department also embarked on a
thorough process of updating the family trees of the newly recognised Amakhosi. The Department processed a total of 71 succession
claims and land boundary disputes as well as 122 litigation matters relating to traditional leadership towards ensuring that disputes
do not destabilise the livelihood of traditional communities.

Traditional Resource Administration

It is important that Houses of Traditional Leaders are able to carry out the functions assigned to them in terms of the Act. The
participation of Traditional Authorities in the IDP process is critical towards sustainable development; hence, the Department supported
all eleven Local Houses in this process. The Department further facilitated about 48 engagements session for the Institutions of
Traditional Leadership, which included all twelve houses in the Province. The Department further supported all eleven Local Houses
towards implementing remedial actions and recommendations based on noted functionality challenges towards ensuring that Institutions
of Traditional Leadership are able to perform their functions. The Department supported all 257 traditional councils on their functionality.
Support provided included assessment of physical conditions of Traditional Administrative Centres on a quarterly basis, monitoring
of support provided to by Sector Departments to Amakhosi, support in maintaining identified partnerships between traditional councils
and sector department and the monthly review of cashbooks. Further provided support on the implementation of policies that support
families of deceased Amakhosi and on the development of performance management systems for the Institutions of Traditional
Leadership.
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ACHIEVEMENTS OF PROGRAMME 4
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STRATEGY TO OVERCOME AREAS OF UNDERPERFORMANCE

CHANGES TO PLANNED TARGETS

No changes were made to the planned targets

LINKING PERFORMANCE WITH BUDGETS

Sub-programme expenditure
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5. TRANSFER PAYMENTS

The Department implement strict monitoring systems on all the transfers to the Public Entities and the Municipalities guided by the
Transfer Manual. The Public Entities and Municipalities are required to sign agreements, provide approved business and implementation
plans before the transfer is made. The agreements include breach clauses and remedy measures. Once the transfer is made, the
Public Entities and Municipalities are expected to submit expenditure and progress reports to monitor implementation and expenditure
on each transfer as part of the agreement. If some of the conditions of the agreement are not met and not resolved with the stipulated
timeframe, the Department notifies the relevant Public Entities in writing and sometimes lead to the cancellation of the agreement
and recovery of such transfer with incurred interest.

5.1 TRANSFERS MADE TO PUBLIC ENTITIES
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5.2 TRANSFER PAYMENTS TO ALL ORGANISATIONS OTHER THAN PUBLIC ENTITIES
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6. CONDITIONAL GRANTS

6.1 CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND EARMARKED FUNDS PAID

The table below describes each of the conditional grants and earmarked funds paid by the department.
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6.2 CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND EARMARKED FUNDS RECEIVED

The table/s below details the conditional grants and ear marked funds received during for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.

Conditional Grant: EPWP-Food for Waste Programme
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7. DONOR FUNDS

7.1 Donor Funds Received

8. CAPITAL INVESTMENT

8.1 Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan
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1. INTRODUCTION

The Department is commitment to maintain the highest standards of governance, which is fundamental to the management of public
finances and resources. The Department has good governance structures in place to effectively, efficiently and economically utilize
the state resources, which is funded by the tax payers.

2. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Accounting Officer has committed the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs to a process of Risk
Management that is aligned to the principles of good Corporate Governance, as supported by the Public Finance Management Act
(PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 as amended by Act 29 of 1999. The Accounting Officer made certain that the Department has and maintains
effective, efficient and transparent risk management in terms of Section 38(a) of the PFMA. Risk Management is not only the
responsibility of the Accounting Officer, but is extended to all levels of management. The Risk Management function falls within the
Internal Control business unit, which is the custodian of the Risk Management Policy and its accompanying Strategy. It coordinates
the Risk Management activities throughout the Department.

The Internal Control business unit facilitated an effective, efficient and transparent risk management process in the Department,
including developing related policies, procedures. Through this the Department has in place an approved Risk Management policy,
approved Risk Management Strategy which was revised in September 2019 and an approved Risk Management implementation plan.
The unit has supported and advised management components in identifying and assessing risks while ensuring adherence to the
approved Risk Appetite and Tolerance Framework of the Department; and also monitored and evaluated the implementation of risk
mitigation plans across the Department.

The implementation of risk mitigation plans was monitored and discussed at the Internal Governance, Risk and Ethics Committee
(GREC) meetings where the committee advised management on the overall system of risk management, especially the mitigation
of unacceptable levels of risk. At the quarterly Cluster Audit and Risk Committee (CARC) meetings the committee advised the
department on risk management and independently monitored the effectiveness of the system of risk management.

The Department focused on the following key areas in the 2019-2020 financial year:
. The Departmental GREC, chaired by the Accounting Officer of the Department was tasked, inter alia, to ensure the
implementation of Enterprise Risk Management through its Terms of Reference.

. Project risk assessments were conducted before the implementation of projects.

. Risk assessment workshops were conducted to review the register of the Department and to identify and assess any
emerging risks.

. Interventions to manage fundamental risks were put in place by management to enhance the internal control environment.

. The annual statistics for 19/20 financial year show that out of fifty-two (52) action plans that were agreed upon, forty-nine
(49) have been implemented. This amounts to ninety-seven percent (94 %) of action plans implemented. The 6% that was
not implemented was the full implementation of the Point of Sale at the remaining TCs, Procurement and installation of the
Integrated Disaster Management Information and Communication System and the TC elections.

. The risk register of the Department was also reviewed quarterly to ensure an improvement in the Department's Risk
Management systems and maturity.

. The Department has seen progress in the management of risks and this has transmitted into improvements in the department's
performance.

3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

The Department has an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Management Policy and its accompanying Strategy that includes a Fraud Prevention
Plan. Through these strategies, the Department aims to pronounce and adhere to its stance of “Zero tolerance to Fraud and Corruption”.
In light of this stance the Department has developed prevention, detection, response and deterrence mechanisms and attends to all
fraud and corruption by applying these four pillars.
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The Department strives to identify and prevent fraud and/ or corruption before it actually occurs and apply mitigating controls through
conducting Fraud Risk Assessments. In addition, all allegations of Fraud are investigated and followed up by the application of all
remedies available within the full extent of the law as well as the application of appropriate prevention and detection controls. The
Department had two criminal cases in the financial year and one is still outstanding.
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Below were Fraud related cases within the Department during the 2019/2020 financial year:
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4. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Department is implementing the following measures to minimise conflict of interest and these are:

Annual financial disclosures by all officials particularly SCM staff;

Conduct of annual audit by internal audit on SCM unit;

Signing of Code of Conduct by staff particularly SCM staff;

Declarations of conflict of interests that are mandatory signed bid committee members;

Verification of declaration of interest signed by service providers when submitting bids; and

Conduct verification by using a prescribed checklist that test compliance of entities participating either on quotations and
open tender bid.

o0 hrwh =

5. CODE OF CONDUCT

All newly appointed employees undergo induction programme where they are workshopped on the code of conduct, ethics management
and departmental policies. In the event where employees transgress any policy, the departmental disciplinary steps are taken against
those employees.

6. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

Occupational Health and Safety (OHS), aims to protect employees from health and safety hazards in the workplace, which is governed
by the OHS Act 85 of 1993. The employer is obliged to provide a workplace that is healthy and free from hazards, OHS Act 85 (section
1 (b). The primary responsibility for ensuring a safe and healthy work environment that is without risk to employees and others lies
with the Accounting Officer. The Department considers its employees as the most valuable assets and undertakes to safeguard them
through providing and maintaining, as far as reasonably practical, a working environment that is safe and without risk to health of its
employees.

In order to comply with the OHS Act mentioned above, the following can be noted:
. The Department has trained and appointed the following personnel: First Aiders (44), Fire Fighters (42) and Safety
Representatives (41), for all Cogta buildings.

. Workplace inspections are carried out on a quarterly basis for all Cogta buildings to help identify existing hazards so that
appropriate action can be taken. Safety Representatives also conduct monthly inspections in their respective buildings.
Reporting is done at EXCO level every quarter.

. Emergency procedures are in place to minimise injuries during emergency evacuations. Periodic (twice a year) drills are
performed to ensure that an evacuation can be done when necessary. Evidence is in a form of attendance registers.

. Health and Safety Representatives Committee meetings are held quarterly where reports for various buildings are interrogated
to ensure implementation and monitoring of the OHS programme.

. Departmental OHS Risk register which comprises of control measures, is available and used to monitor and mitigate health
and safety risks.

The effectiveness of the OHS programme in the Department was audited by PWC and KPMG which are independent auditors through
Internal Audit from Treasury. Matters raised in the draft reports are being attended to as a continuous process and within the provided
target dates. Amongst other critical issues that were raised by the auditors, were possible emergency evacuation delays, illuminated
exit signs, lighting, ventilation, air- conditioning and some damaged ceilings in passages.
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7. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
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8. SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

SCOPA RESOLUTIONS FOR THE 2019/20 FINANCIAL YEAR
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9. PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS

The table below is an illustration of the matters raised by the AG that resulted in the Department receiving a Financially Unqualified
Opinion with findings on compliance:
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10. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Department is committed to improved internal controls and risk management. It manages internal controls by setting objectives
and by ensuring that the required control mechanisms and activities are in place. During the year under review, the Department
continually assessed and evaluated internal controls to assure that the existing control activities are effective, efficient, transparent
and updated when necessary.

The departmental Risk Register was revised and updated throughout the year. The Risk Management Implementation Plan was
developed and reported on a quarterly basis.

Internal audits were conducted to ensure that systems and controls are in place and adequately implemented. The Audit Improvement
Strategy for the findings raised in the Internal Audit Reports was compiled in order to monitor the implementation of Management
Action Plans.

Auditor General's Audit Improvement Strategy was also compiled and monitored to ensure that all findings raised were addressed.
In the 2019/20 financial year the Internal Control Unit introduced the review of all Bids for compliance, all Bids were scrutinised by
internal control before the Accounting Officer signed to award the bids. This assisted in the reduction of instances of Irregular
Expenditure stemming from not following SCM processes.

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure was investigated by the Internal Control unit and reports for all transactions investigated were
provided to the Accounting Officer with recommendations for improvements in the system controls as well as any consequence
management where necessary.

Irregular Expenditure transactions were also investigated for 2017/18 2018/19 and 2019/20; and an application for condonation was
submitted to the Provincial Accountant General for 207/18 and 2018/19.

11. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
1. Key activities and objectives of the Internal Audit

The PIAS exits as an independent, objective assurance and consulting service designed to add value and improve the KZNPG's
operations. It helps the KZNPG departments to enhance and protect organisational values by providing risk-based and objective
assurance, advise and insight thereby accomplish its objective by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve
the effectiveness of risk management, internal control and governance processes.

2. summary of audit work done

PIAS-Assurance Services had completed 20 audits assignments planned for the year in terms of the annual internal audit operational
plan as approved by the Cluster Audit and Risk Committee. These audits included full scope reviews as well as follow up reviews
on both previous internal audit reports and the AG reports. Full scope audit assignments conducted for the current financial year
included audits on Supply Chain Management, Transfer Payments, Interim Financial Statement reviews, Performance information,
Contract management, Local Governance support, Traditional Councils and IT reviews on Cyber security.
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3. key activities and objectives of the Audit Committee
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4. Attendance of Audit Committee meetings by members of the Audit Committee Members

The PARC and GSCID CARC consists of the members listed hereunder who have met as reflected below, in line with the approved
terms of reference.

12. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2019.
Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 38 (1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance
Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms
of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its
responsibilities as contained therein, except that we have not reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices.

The Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from the Public Finance Management Act, No.1 of 1999
(PFMA), Treasury Regulations 3.1, including all other related prescripts, and is pleased to present its report for the financial year
ended 31 March 2020.

The Provincial Audit and Risk Committee (PARC) is the shared audit and risk committee for the provincial departments, and is further
sub-divided into three Cluster Audit & Risk Committees (CARC's) that provide oversight of key functions to the KZN Provincial
Government Departments. The Department of Cooperative Governance & Traditional Affairs is served by the Governance State
Capacity and Institutional Development (GSCID) Cluster Audit & Risk Committee.

The Committee has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference contained in its Audit and Risk Committee Charter and has regulated
its affairs in compliance with this charter, and reports that it has discharged all of its responsibilities as contained therein.
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1. The Effectiveness of Internal Control

The Committee has reviewed the reports of the Provincial Internal Audit Service (PIAS), the Audit Report on the Annual Financial
Statements and Management Report of the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA) and has noted with concern, the weaknesses
in controls in the following areas:

. Municipal Support

. Supply Chain Management
. Traditional Councils

. Budget Management.

. Expenditure Management

The Committee considered the appropriateness of managements' planned interventions to improve the overall control environment
and advised management to implement these remedial actions timeously, to avoid the recurrence of audit findings.

2. Effectiveness of Internal Audit

PIAS activities were reviewed by the Committee during the PARC and CARC monitoring processes. The Committee evaluated PIAS'
reports detailing the assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of controls designed to mitigate the risks associated with the
operational and strategic activities of the department.

The PIAS planned to perform thirteen (15) audit assignments for the period under review, but two (2) IT audits were rolled over to
the 2020/21 financial year with the formal approval of the Audit Committee as a result of the migration process that was not finalized
by the Department.

The Committee is satisfied that PIAS performed effectively during the period under review. During the 2020/21 financial year, the
Committee will continue to monitor the progress made by the PIAS against its operational plans in order to ensure that it continues
to fulfil its mandate and add value to the Department.

3. Risk Management

The responsibilities of the Committee with respect to risk management are formally defined in its Charter. For the period under review,
the Committee's responsibilities have been focused, amongst other things, on the quarterly review of the Department's risk register
and monitoring progress against the Risk Management Operational Plan.

As at the end of the 19/20 financial year, the Department's risk register status was as follows:

The Committee noted that although the Department has implemented 67% of the overall risk remedial actions, the Committee remains
concerned with the failure by the Department to timely mitigate risks classified as major. The Department is urged to 1) ensure the
completion of all risk mitigation plans, particularly risks classified as critical and major with a period of three to six months as required
by the Provincial Risk Management Framework; and 2) ensure updating of the risk register with the strategic risks which should be
identified and assessed as part of the Department's 2020/25 strategic plan and 2020/21 annual performance plan processes.
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With regard to the risk-related improvement plans, the Department is commended on having completed 100% of its Occupational
Health and Safety (OHS) improvement action plans. With the current focus being on compliance with the OHS Act due to the COVID
19 pandemic, the Department is strongly advised to extend their OHS and COVID-19 control measures at all its offices.

With regard to the current COVID-19 pandemic, the Department is urged to ensure continued compliance with prescribed COVID-
19 and OHS control measures in all of its offices and to put the necessary contingency measures to minimise the negative impact
the pandemic might have on the achievement of the Department's service delivery obligations.

4. Quality of in year management and monthly/quarterly reports

The Committee was satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly reports in respect of in year management and quarterly
performance, prepared and issued by the Accounting Officer of the Department during the year under review in terms of the PFMA
and the Division of Revenue Act. The Committee continues to note the significant uncertainty related to the financial sustainability of
the Department, due to the fact that current commitments amounting to R1.47 billion to settle the payback of allowances to iziNduna
which exceed the total budgeted revenue.

Based on the reports of the PIAS and the Auditor General, the Committee noted with concern the material underspending of budget
on programme 3 due to delays on receipt of invoices from the service providers. The Department has been urged to implement the
appropriate improvement strategies in order to address the identified shortcomings with immediate effect.

5. Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Committee has:

. Reviewed and discussed the Annual Financial Statements, including the audit report, with the Accounting Officer, Auditor
General and PIAS;

. Reviewed the Auditor General's Management Report

. Reviewed the Department's processes for compliance with legal and regulatory provisions, where concerns have been noted
Budget management.

. Reviewed the conclusion on the usefulness and reliability of performance information resulting from the external audit of the
Department.

6. Forensics Investigations

During the 2019/20 financial year, the Committee noted that there were six (6) forensic investigations, all relating to alleged conflict
of interest, supply chain management and procurement irregularities and the mismanagement of funds, which the department had
referred to the PIAS for investigation. Forensic reports were completed and issued to the department in respect of three (3) of these
investigations, ie. Phase 1 investigations were finalised. Three (3) investigations are currently in-progress.

In respect of the three (3) completed Phase 1 investigations, the Committee further noted that:

. Two (2) of these matters recommended criminal action and these are currently under criminal investigation with the South
African Police Service (SAPS);
. Three (3) of these matters also recommended disciplinary proceedings. The department has finalised the disciplinary action

in respect of one (1) matter and one (1) disciplinary proceeding is still underway. In respect of the third matter where disciplinary
actions were recommended, the Accounting Officer recommended that another department should institute disciplinary
proceedings as the official had transferred to that department.

The department and the PIAS are urged to promptly finalise the outstanding investigations and work together to implement
recommendations made in the finalised investigations.

7. Auditor General's Report
The Committee has monitored the implementation of corrective action plans to address the audit issues raised by the Auditor General
in the prior year. The Committee has met with the Auditor General of South Africa to discuss and evaluate the issues that emanated

from the current regulatory audit.

The Committee will ensure that corrective actions in respect of the detailed findings emanating from the current regulatory audit
continue to be monitored on a quarterly basis through the CARC processes.
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The Committee concurs and accepts the conclusion of the Auditor General's unqualified audit opinion on the Annual Financial
Statements, and is of the opinion that the Audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the
Auditor General. The Committee commends the Department on obtaining an unqualified audit opinion with no findings.

8. Appreciation

The Committee wishes to express its appreciation to the Management of the Department, the Auditor General of South Africa, and
the Provincial Internal Audit Services for the co-operation and support they have provided to enable us to compile this report.

Mr SP Simelane

Acting Chairperson: Provincial Audit and Risk Committee
Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
12 October 2020
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13. B-BBEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The following table has been completed in accordance with the compliance to the BBBEE requirements of the BBBEE Act of 2013
and as determined by the Department of Trade and Industry.
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PART D

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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1. INTRODUCTION

The information contained in this part of the annual report has been prescribed by the Minister for the Public Service and Administration
for all departments in the public service

2. OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES

The Department prescribes to the value of investing in staff as a valued asset and implements a health and wellness programme
that is underpinned by the following policies:

HIV/Aids and TB Management Policy.
Health and Productivity Management Policy.
Wellness Management Policy.

A policy Framework on “Work and Play” that was approved by COHOD is being implemented at all Cogta Offices through wellness
classes, departmental sports day, interdepartmental games and club championships which has seen the department excel. In terms
of the aforementioned policies the department undertakes a quarterly health and wellness risk assessment, posting information,
educational and communication material on the intranet, the provision of continuous clinical care and support through the wellness
centre under the supervision of a professional nurse, the access and provision of professional services for employees in need of
psychological or related assistance, workshops the management of sexual harassment in the workplace and financial wellness
advocacy. The wellness assessments which also includes cancer identification tests such as pap smears and prostate tests has been
a vital and important tool in recognizing early warning health risks and referrals are promptly instituted to negate further risks.
Chronic diseases of lifestyle including diabetes and hypertension which is caused by unhealthy dietary patterns, physical inactivity
and substance abuse has been prioritized together with decreasing and managing the HIV & AIDS and TB rate through the structured
primary prevention wellness programmes to create a healthier and productive workforce. As per the NSP 2017-2022 which encourages
testing through the 90-90-90 programme, the departments testing rate is over 50% during wellness screening sessions with 167 staff
members declaring their HIV status. They are managed by the resident nurse. Employees also receive professional support as part
of the Employee Assistance Programme (743 employees have been referred since the inception of the programme circa 2007).
Moreover, 44 employees have been workshopped on the management of sexual harassment in the workplace. About 25 employees
have attended financial literacy workshops.

The Employee Performance Management & Development System Policy is in operation for employees (excluding SMS). The SMS
Handbook is utilised to manage the performance of Senior Managers. The Department seeks to ensure that all employees sign
performance agreements, undertake midyear reviews of performance and undergo annual performance assessments. A process is
in place whereby the Performance Agreements of Senior, Middle and Junior Managers are aligned to the Annual Performance Plan.
This validation is undertaken by the Departmental Moderating Committee. This process ensures that there is a common purpose and
direction at all strategic levels.

Should any employee be underperforming then they are required to sign a performance improvement plan that deals with specific
gaps found during the reviews and assessments. The Department does recognise those employees who perform above average and
the Departmental Moderating Committee makes recommendation for the rewarding of such employees.
Financial Disclosures are rendered as per the DPSA and Provincial Policy. A compliance rate of 100% was achieved in respect of
all eDisclosures as prescribed by the ministerial directive and 100% for other levels as per Provincial Policy

The development of a capable public service is a commitment that the Department underpins through the skills development
programmes. The management cadre is developed mainly through the competency assessments that are undertaken as well as skills
needs that are identified and contained in their performance agreements. Such skills gaps are subsequently addressed through training
programmes. At levels other than at senior management skills are identified and developed through the Employee Performance
Management System and the performance agreements entered into between employee and supervisor. The personal development
plan is part of the agreement and plays an integral part in the identification and addressing of skills needs. Each year employees are
able to make application for participation in the departments bursary programme. There are currently 47 employees participating in
the programme.

To grow the management cadre in the Department by ensuring that skills sets are developed it has been concluded that some form
of competency assessments for developmental purposes should be conducted. The intention is that skills gaps would be addressed
and that the movement of these levels of employees to the next level would be facilitated in a better manner. This matter will be dealt
with in the FY2020/2021 Annual Performance Plan. Many employees have benefited from skills development as expounded in the
tables in this report as well as the bursary programme. The Annual Performance Plan requires that Orientation/Induction sessions
be held on the quarterly basis for employees and newcomers. These sessions cover the departmental structure, ethics, sexual
harassment, challenges facing persons living with disabilities, Public Service Code of Conduct, Back to Basics as well as health and
wellness matters.

el —
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The Department is committed to the development of unemployed youth. As part thereof Cogta offers bursaries to unemployed,
disadvantaged youth particularly women and persons from rural areas. After graduation such youth are able to participate in the
internship programme. There are currently 158 youth participating in the bursary programme. The Department is currently operating
an Internship Programme where qualified unemployed young graduates are deployed as Interns to municipalities. Such Interns will
bring their academic learning into the municipal space and obtain the experience as they work in the operations of the municipalities.
500 unemployed youth graduates will benefit from this programme.

3. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
3.1. Personnel related expenditure

The following tables summarises the final audited personnel related expenditure by programme and by salary bands. In particular, it
provides an indication of the following:

. amount spent on personnel
. amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowner's allowances and medical aid.

Table 3.1.1 Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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Table 3.1.2 Personnel costs by salary band for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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Table 3.1.3 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme
for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

Table 3.1.4 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band
for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

: PAGE 166 :
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3.2. Employment and Vacancies

The tables in this section summarise the position with regard to employment and vacancies.

The following tables summarise the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy rate, and whether
there are any staff that are additional to the establishment.

This information is presented in terms of three key variables:

. programme
. salary band
. critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. In terms of current regulations, it is possible to create a
post on the establishment that can be occupied by more than one employee. Therefore, the vacancy rate reflects the percentage of
posts that are not filled.

. sl — .
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Table 3.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2020

Table 3.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2020
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Table 3.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2020

: PAGE 169 .
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3.3 Filling of SMS Posts
The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies as it relates to members of the Senior Management
Service by salary level. It also provides information on advertising and filling of SMS posts, reasons for not complying with prescribed

timeframes and disciplinary steps taken.

Table 3.3.1 SMS post information as on 31 March 2020

Table 3.3.2 SMS post information as on 30 September 2019

Table 3.3.3 Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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Table 3.3.4 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS - Advertised within 6 months and filled within
12 months after becoming vacant for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

Table 3.3.5 Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling SMS posts within 12 months for the
period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

1.4 Job Evaluation

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his or her organisation. In
terms of the Regulations all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher were evaluated before they were filled. The following table
summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under review. The table also provides statistics on the number

of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.

Table 3.4.1 Job Evaluation by Salary band for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their post being upgraded.

The number of employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded since not all employees are automatically absorbed into
the new posts and some of the posts upgraded could also be vacant.

Table 3.4.2 Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded for the period 1 April 2019
and 31 March 2020

The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration bands exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation.
Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

Table 3.4.3 Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation by occupation for the period 1 April 2019
and 31 March 2020
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The following table summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

Table 3.4.4 Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation for the period 1 April 2019
and 31 March 2020

. The table below indicate that there were no cases where the salary levels were higher than those determined by job evaluation:

3.5 Employment Changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates provide an indication of trends
in the employment profile of the department. The following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by salary band and critical
occupations.
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Table 3.5.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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Table 3.5.2 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020




COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20




COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

The table below identifies the major reasons why staff left the Department.

Table 3.5.3 Reasons why staff left the department for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

Table 3.5.4 Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

: PAGE 178 .
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Table 3.5.5 Promotions by salary band for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

: PAGE 181 .
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3.6 Employment Equity

Table 3.6.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational categories
as on 31 March 2020




COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Table 3.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational bands
as on 31 March 2020)

: PAGE 183 .



COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Table 3.6.3 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

: PAGE 184 .
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Table 3.6.4 Promotions for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

: PAGE 185 .
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Table 3.6.5 Terminations for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

: PAGE 186 .
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Table 3.6.6 Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Table 3.6.7 Skills development for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

: PAGE 187 :
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3.7 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members
All members of the SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific timeframes. Information regarding the
signing of performance agreements by SMS members, the reasons for not complying within the prescribed timeframes and disciplinary

steps taken is presented here.

Table 3.7.1 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2019

Table 3.7.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS members as on 31 May 2019

Table 3.7.3 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded Performance agreements as on 31 May 2019

PAGE 188 .
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1.8 Performance Rewards

To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during the year under review. The
information is presented in terms of race, gender, disability, salary bands and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 3.8.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Table 3.8.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service for the period 1 April 2019
to 31 March 2020
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Table 3.8.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

: PAGE 190 :
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UMZIMKHULU LOCAL MUNICIPALITY, DOING IT FOR YOU.
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Table 3.8.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management Service for the period 1 April 2019
to 31 March 2020

UMZIMKHULU LOCAL MUNICIPALITY, DOING IT FOR YOU.
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3.9 Foreign Workers
The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the department in terms of salary band and major occupation.

Table 3.9.1 Foreign workers by salary band for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

Table 3.9.2 Foreign workers by major occupation for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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1.10 Leave utilisation
The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The following tables

provide an indication of the use of sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.

Table 3.10.1 Sick leave for the period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019

Table 3.10.2 Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
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The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the PSCBC in 2000
requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of termination of service.

Table 3.10.3 Annual Leave for the period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019

Table 3.10.4 Capped leave for the period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019




COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

The following table summarise payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Table 3.10.5 Leave pay outs for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

: PAGE 196 :
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3.11 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes

Table 3.11.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Table 3.11.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (tick the applicable boxes and provide the required information)
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1.12 Labour Relations

Table 3.12.1 Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

Notes

. If there were no agreements, keep the heading and replace the table with the following:

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the year under review.

Table 3.12.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020
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Table 3.12.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

Table 3.12.4 Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Table 3.12.5 Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Table 3.12.6 Strike actions for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020
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Table 3.12.7 Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

1.13 Skills development
This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development.

Table 3.13.1 Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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Table 3.13.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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1.14 Injury on duty
The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 3.14.1 Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

1.15 Utilisation of Consultants

The following tables relates information on the utilisation of consultants in the department. In terms of the Public Service Regulations
“consultant' means a natural or juristic person or a partnership who or which provides in terms of a specific contract on an ad hoc
basis any of the following professional services to a department against remuneration received from any source:

(a) The rendering of expert advice;
(b) The drafting of proposals for the execution of specific tasks; and
(c) The execution of a specific task which is of a technical or intellectual nature, but excludes an employee of a department.

Table 3.15.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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Table 3.15.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs)
for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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Table 3.15.3 Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020
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Table 3.15.4 Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs)
for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

1.16 Severance Packages

Table 3.16.1 Granting of employee initiated severance packages for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020




PART E

FINANGIAL INFORMATION




COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 ! -

1. REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Department of Cooperative

Governance and Traditional
Affairs

Audit report for the year ending
31 March 2020
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Report of the auditor-general to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial
Legislature on vote no. 11: Department of Cooperative
Governance and Traditional Affairs

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1.

I have audited the financial statements of the Department of Cooperative Governance
and Traditional Affairs set out on pages 219 to 312, which comprise the appropriation
statement, statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year
then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs as at
31 March 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Modified Cash Standard (MCS) as prescribed by the National
Treasury and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of
1999) (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2019 (Act No. 16 of
2019) (DoRA).

Basis for opinion

3.

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (1SAs).
My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report.

I am independent of the department in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the
Code of ethics for professional accountants and parts 1 and 3 of the Infernational Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA codes) as well as the
ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA codes.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.
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Material uncertainty relating to funding for back pay of allowances

6. |draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

7. | draw attention to note 26 to the financial statements, which indicates that the
department has a liability to settle the back pay of allowances amounting to R1,47 billion
at 31 March 2020 relating to iziNduna. The department was in negotiations with provincial
and national treasuries as well as the provincial cabinet to seek funding. This matter
indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
department’s ability to fund this liability.

Emphasis of matter

8. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Material underspending of budget

9. As disclosed in note 4.1 to the appropriation statement, the department materially
underspent its budget on programme 3 — development and planning by R24 48 million,
mainly due to the delays experienced on the project ‘assessment of the state of
infrastructure’ in the province, that also resulted in the end date of the project being
extended.

Other matters

10. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

11. The supplementary information set out on pages 299 to 312 does not form part of the
financial statements and is presented as additional information. | have not audited these
schedules and, accordingly, | do not express an opinion thereon.

Responsibilities of accounting officer for the financial statements

12. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with MCS and the requirements of the PFMA and
DoRA, and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

13. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing
the department’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
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relating to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the
appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the department or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

14.

15.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
included in the annexure to this auditor's report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

16.

17.

In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA)
and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report on the
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information against predetermined
objectives for the selected programme presented in the annual performance report. |
performed procedures to identify material findings but not to gather evidence to express
assurance.

My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information, which must be based on the approved performance planning documents of
the department. | have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the
performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures do not
examine whether the actions taken by the department enabled service delivery. My
procedures also do not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned
performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included
as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend
to these matters.
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18. | evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice, for programme 3 - development and
planning, presented on pages 65to 71 of the annual performance report of the
department for the year ended 31 March 2020.

19. | performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved
performance planning documents. | performed further procedures to determine whether
the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the
reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid,
accurate and complete.

20. 1 did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for this programme.

Other matters

21. | draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

22. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 39 to 75 for information on the
achievement of planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under-
Joverachievement of a significant number of targets.

Adjustment of material misstatements

23. | identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for
auditing. These material misstatements were in the reported performance information of
programme 3. As management subsequently corrected the misstatements, | did not raise
any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

24, In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a
responsibility to report material findings on the department’s compliance with specific matters
in key legislation. | performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to
express assurance.
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25. | did not identify any material findings on compliance with the specific matters in key
legislation set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Other information

26.The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report. The other information does not
include the financial statements, the auditor's report and those selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported on in the
auditor’s report.

27.My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information
and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and | do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

28.1In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
and the selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge
obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

29.The other information | obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report is the accounting
officer's report. The member of the executive council's (MEC) foreword and the audit
committee’s report are expected to be made available to me after 30 September 2020.

30.1f, based on the work | have performed on the other information that | obtained prior to the
date of this auditor's report, | conclude that there is a material misstatement in this other
information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

31.After | receive and read the MEC’s foreword and audit committee’s report, and if | conclude
that there is a material misstatement, | am required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the other
information is not corrected, | may have to retract this auditor's report and re-issue an
amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

32. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my
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Annexure — Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the

procedures performed on reported performance information for the selected programme

and on the department's compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in

this auditor’s report, | also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the department’s internal control.
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officer.
conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
department to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My
conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause a department to cease
operating as a going concermn.
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Communication with those charged with governance

3.

I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also confirm to the accounting officer that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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